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Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page
(New schools that were not open for instruction for
the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete

or submit an annual report this year).
Created: 07/22/2019 -« Last updated: 08/23/2019

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the
other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be
assigned the correct tasks.

BASIC INFORMATION

a. SCHOOL NAME DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL

(Select name from the drop down menu)

al. Popular School Name DCS
(Optional)

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of Regents Authorized Charter School
June 30th, 2019)

Please select the correct authorizer as of
June 30, 2019 or you may not be
assigned the correct tasks.

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION Greece

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 12/2010
e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 08/2011
INSTRUCTION
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f. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized
schools only)

MISSION STATEMENT

Discovery Charter School prepares students to meet the challenges of a rapidly changing world,
providing children living in poverty “real skills for the real world.” Within a learning environment featuring
a rigorous and highly enriched curriculum, Expeditionary Learning, assessment guided instruction, a
culture of inquiry and enthusiasm, and services designed to mitigate the major negative impacts of
poverty, students achieve beyond their peers and become exceptionally well prepared to engage the
world wherever their interests take them.
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g. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools
only)

KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Brief heading followed by a description of each Key Design Elements
(KDE). KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the school’s
mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. The
design elements may include a specific content area focus; unique student populations to be
served; specific educational programs or pedagogical approaches; unigue calendar, schedule, or
configurations of students and staff; and/or innovative organizational structures and systems.

Variable 1 7.25 hours of daily instruction over 200 days of instruction
per year.

Variable 2 Class size will be limited to 22 with two teachers in each
classroom.

Variable 3 Classroom teachers will be supported by full time

substitutes, teaching assistants, and reading and special
education teachers to accommodate the needs of the
student population

Variable 4 An ESL teacher, a Reading Specialist, special education
teachers, and a Dean of Students/Community Liaison on
staff.

Variable 5 Commitment of community partners to support the school by

providing services and programs aimed squarely at
mitigating the most serious negative impacts on learning,
providing adequate food and nutrition, adequate health care,
learning reinforcement and positive role modeling, and
supervision during non school hours.

Variable 6 Parent representation on the Board of Trustees, participation
in Parent Association, and attendance at school Community
Meetings with staff and parents. School staff will conduct
home visits, and keep parents abreast of student progress on
daily basis.

Variable 7 Differentiated instruction and multiple instructional
methodologies.

Variable 8 Formative and summative assessments to inform student
learning plans, instructional practices, and effectiveness of
school decisions

Variable 9 Received support from the Rochester City School District,
Greece Central School District, Spencerport Central School
District and the West Irondequoit Central School District.

Variable 10 (No response)
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Need additional space for No

variables

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) www.rochesterdiscovery.com

i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 280
ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19
SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K

program enrollment)

j- TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 263
ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K

program enrollment)

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program
students)
Check all that apply

Grades Served K, 1,2, 3,4,5,6

11. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT No
WITH A CHARTER OR

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT
ORGANIZATION?

FACILITIES INFORMATION

m. FACILITIES
Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2019-207?

No, just one site.

School Site 1 (Primary)
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ml. SCHOOL SITES
Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year.

Site 1

Physical Address

133 Hoover
Drive
Rochester NY
14617

District/CSD Grades to be
Served at Site
for coming year

(K5, 609, etc.)

Phone Number

585 342 4032 Greece K6

mla. Please provide the contact information for Site 1.

School
Leader

Operati
onal
Leader

Complia
nce
Contact

Complai
nt
Contact

DASA
Coordin
ator

Phone
Contact
for After
Hours
Emerge
ncies

m1lb. Is site 1 in public (co-

Name

Sara Castner

Laurie Corbett

Sara Castner

Sara Castner

Chantiera Gadson

Sara Castner

Work Phone

Alternate Phone

Receives Rental
Assistance for
Which Grades (If
yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No).

Email Address

Private Space

located) space or in private

space?
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IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC

mld. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection

Report for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC .

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO)

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/109885761/yFPTXS6fVy/

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/109885761/nBJtmgxAKU/

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR

nl. Were there any revisions to  Yes
the school’s charter during the
2018-19 school year? (Please

include approved or pending
material and non-material

charter revisions).
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n2. Summary of Charter Revisions

Category (Select Best Specific Revision

Description)

1 Change in
schedule/calendar

2

3

4

5

More revisions to add?

ATTESTATION

Date Approved by

(150 word limit) BOT (if applicable)

The School hereby
requests approval
from the New York
State Charter School
Office for a Non
Material charter
revision to change
the School’s schedule
from a minimum of
200 days of
instruction annually
to a minimum of
1,100 hours of
instruction annually.

7/27/2018

No

Date Approved by
Authorizer (if
applicable)

o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report.

Name
Position
Phone/Extension

Email

Matthew Bradstreet

Academic Data & Operations Coordinator

718



p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board
President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and
accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter,
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We
understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been
deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our
charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on

your mobile device to signh your name).

Yes

Signature, Head of Charter School

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees

[ERY

Date 2019/08/01

Thank you.
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Town of Greece

1 Vince Tofany Blvd., Greece, NY, 14612
Phone: 585-225-2000 Fax: 585-723-2457

Fire Code Violation Report

Occupant: Summers and Sands Campus - General file
Address: 133 Hoover Dr
Phone: 585-334-8010

Date of Inspection:  10/23/2018 11:50:00 AM

Item Fire Code Reference Location Description Abated

Correct wtihin 30 Days

1 404.2.1 Fire evacuation Replace Maps Room 304, 202, 207, 208, 210,
plans. 212,211,102, 103, 109, 111,
111B, 302, 200,

Inspector Comments:

Correct wtihin 30 Days

2  601.2 Responsibility. Room 204A Repair the light fixture in the
mechanical room so it is not
hanging unsecured.

Inspector Comments:

Correct wtihin 30 Days

3  Housekeepin Room 205 Replace the missing ceiling
] I
tile.

Inspector Comments:

Correct wtihin 30 Days

4  Housekeeping Near Exit door 26 Remove all storage from this
area, (All wood storage, as
well as the wheel barrels)

Inspector Comments:

Correct wtihin 30 Days

10/23/2018 6:42:11 PM Page 1 of 2



133 Hoover Dr October 23, 2018

Item Fire Code Reference Location Description Abated
5 703.2.3 Door operation. Double Egress doors Make Adjustments so that the
near room 109 door will close all the way on

its own and latch.

Inspector Comments:

Correct wtihin 30 Days

6  703.2.3 Door operation. Room 1111 Repair the fire door so it will
latch from the fully opened
position.

Inspector Comments:

Correct wtihin 30 Days

7 305.3 Interior surfaces. Door 20 Outside of the Check to find out what caused
gym the ceiling to peel away, if it
becomes more of an issue it
will have to be repaired.

Inspector Comments:

Correct wtihin 30 Days

8 Room 201 Remove the mesh screen
behind the rescue window.

Inspector Comments:

Inspection Result: Deficiencies Noted Report Created by: Nick Altobelli

Inspection Completed by: Nick Altobelli Report Received by:
Phone:
Email:
Inspection of premises has found the above violations of the New York State Uniform Fire Prevention and Building
Code. You are hereby directed to correct these violations immediately and further notified that a reinspection will be

made within ten (10) working days from the date hereof, unless a different time is stated, to insure compliance with the
code. Failure to correct may result in legal action being taken against you.

10/23/2018 6:42:11 PM Page 2 of 2



VALID FOR FACILITY:

DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL
133 HOOVER DRIVE
ROCHESTER, NEW YORK 14615

Building ID: 260501861002

DISTRICT:

DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL
JOSEPH SAIA

133 HOOVER DR

ROCHESTER, NEW YORK 14615

Issuance Date: October 31, 2018
Effective Date: October 01, 2018
Expiration Date: October 01, 2019



Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link

Last updated: 07/22/2019

DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of REGENTS Authorized Charter School
June 30th, 2019)

(For technical reasons, please re select
authorizer name from the drop down

menu).
2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT https://data.nysed.gov/essa.php?
CARD instid=800000070175&year=2018&createreport=1&allchecke

d=1&0OverallStatus=1&section 1003=1&EMindicators=1&EMc
omposite=1&EMgrowth=1&EMcompgrowth=1&EMelp=1&EMp
rogress=1&EMchronic=1&EMpart=1&staffqual=1&expend=1&

38ELA=1&38MATH=1&48SCl=1&nyseslat=1&feddata=1

Provide a direct URL or web link

to the most recent New York
State School Report Card for the
charter school (See
https://reportcards.nysed.govy/).
(Charter schools completing year
one will not yet have a School
Report Card or link to one. Please

type "URL is not available" in the
space provided.)
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E Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals

Created: 11/13/2019 - Last updated: 11/15/2019

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS

Board of Regents authorized and NYCDOE authorized charter schools only. Complete the tables provided.
List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter, and indicate whether
the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all goals by November 1st.

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS

If performance data is not available by August 1st, please state this in the last column and update by
November 1st.

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals

Academic Student Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met Indicate if data is not
Performance Goal Evaluate Progress available. If/when
Toward Attainment of available, Describe
Goal Efforts School Will
Take If Goal Is Not
Met

Overall, in 2018 19,
DCS students' pass
rates exceeded those
of RCSD students
19% to 13% in ELA
AND 21% TO 13% in
MATH. However, in
grade 6, DCS did not
outperform RCSD.
Furthermore, overall
pass rates do not

Academ . [

ic Goal Students ac_h|eve NYS Assessments sgg:c;acg:jgr::ign;cigls

beyond their peers

1 to meet and exceed
the overall NYS
average pass rates.
DCS has hired a new
school leader and is
implementing a
school turnaround
model, with the
support of The
Rensselaerville
Institute.

Academ
ic Goal
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2

Academ
ic Goal
3

Academ
ic Goal
4

Academ
ic Goal
5

Academ
ic Goal
6

Academ
ic Goal
7

Academ
ic Goal
8

Academ
ic Goal
9

Academ
ic Goal
10

2. Do have more academic goals No
to add?

3. Do have more academic goals No
to add?

4. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals

Organizational Goal Measure Used to Goal Met or Not Met If Not Met, Describe
Evaluate Progress Efforts School Will
Take

All students eligible
for free or reduce
Org

Goal 1  Poverty Preference  Price lunch at the Met
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Org
Goal 2

Org
Goal 3

Org
Goal 4

Org
Goal 5

Org
Goal 6

Org
Goal 7

Org
Goal 8

Org
Goal 9

Org
Goal 10

Org
Goal 11

Org
Goal 12

Rigorous and highly
enriched curriculum

Assessment guided
instruction

Culture of inquiry and

enthusiasm.

Services designed to
mitigate the major
negative impacts of
poverty

time of admission to

DCS.

ELA and Math

curricula aligned with  Met

NYS standards.

Frequent
assessments are
used to adjust
curriculum and
instruction.
Instructional
practices are
systematically
assessed and
adjusted.

EL assessment
confirm fidelity of
implementation of
expeditions built on
inquiry, problem
solving, and project
based work.

Partnerships with
community
organizations that
provide health and
wellness supports,
family support, and
additional academic
support.

3/5

Met

Met

Met



Org
Goal 13

Org
Goal 14

Org
Goal 15

Org
Goal 16

Org
Goal 17

Org
Goal 18

Org
Goal 19

Org
Goal 20

5. Do have more organizational No

goals to add?

6. FINANCIAL GOALS

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals

Financia
| Goal 1

Financia
| Goal 2

Financia
| Goal 3

Financia
| Goal 4

Financia
| Goal 5

Financial Goals

Increase financial
support to improve

academic outcomes.

Measure Used to
Evaluate Progress

“Moderate Risk” (as

defined by the

NYSED Key Financial

indicators) as the
minimum financial

goal.

4/5

Goal

Met

Met or Not Met

If Not Met, Describe
Efforts School Will
Take



7. Do have more financial goals No
to add?

Thank you.
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ﬁ Entry 4 Expenditures per Child

Created: 07/29/2019 -« Last updated: 08/01/2019

DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading

Financial Information

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures
Per Child):

1. Total Expenditures Per Child
To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-

19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enroliment.
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas).

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41-43 of the
Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil
calculations: Audit Guide available within the portal or on the NYSED website

at: http://www.pl2.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf.

Line 1: Total Expenditures 5028068
Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 263

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 19118
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2. Administrative Expenditures per Child
To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per

Child” first add together the following:

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses)

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must
be included in this calculation is defined as follows:

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the
activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also
includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations
on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program.

Notes:

The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41-43 of the Audit Guide
can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations:
http://www.pl12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html.

Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations.

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services

Cost (Row) 349581
Line 2: Management and General Cost 265991
(Column)

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 615572
Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End 2341

FTE student enrollment

Thank you.
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OTHER CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL INFORMATION

REPORT REQUIRED BY
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS

JUNE 30,2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

MIMIB!

MENGEL METZGER BARR & CO. e

Certified Public Accountants



CONTENTS

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PAGE

Independent Auditor’s Report

W

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

5
Consolidated Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 6
Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses 7
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 8
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 9

OTHER CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Independent Auditor’s Report on Consolidating Financial Information 20
Consolidating Statement of Financial Position 21
Consolidating Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 22

REPORT REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 24



MIMIB]

MENGEL METZGER BARR & CO. e

Certified Public Accauniants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Trustees
Discovery Charter School

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Discovery Charter School which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related consolidated statements of
activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

-3.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Discovery Charter School as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its net assets, functional
expenses and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Discovery Charter School’s June 30, 2018 consolidated financial statements, and we
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited consolidated financial statements in our report dated
October 15, 2018. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2018 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements from
which it has been derived.

Other Report Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 17, 2019 on
our consideration of Discovery Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Discovery Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Mongel, MleZyges, foa/s' o 44

Rochester, New York
September 17, 2019

WE VALUE YOUR FUTURE




DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30. 2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Grants and other receivables

Prepaid expenses
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net

OTHER ASSET - cash in escrow

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and benefits
Deferred revenue
Deferred lease liability

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

June 30,
2019 2018
$ 436,604 § 616985
151,235 212,741
50,826 49,774
638,665 879,500
319,832 191,481
75,000 75,000
$ 1,033,497 $ 1,145,981
$ 228209 $ 122,437
430,069 412,992
- 25,000
- 4,130
658,278 564,559
188.861 403.452
186,358 177,970
375,219 581,422
$ 1,033,497 $ 1,145,981

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

Operating revenue and support:
Public school districts:
Per pupil allocation income
District textbooks in-kind
Students with disabilities
Total revenue from public school districts

Federal and State grants

Private grants

Donated supplies, materials and services
Net assets released from donor restriction

Total other revenue and support

TOTAL OPERATING
REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Expenses:
Program services:
Regular education
Special education

Supporting services:
Management and general
TOTAL EXPENSES

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Net assets at beginning of year
NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Year ended June 30,
2019 2018
Without donor  With donor
restrictions restrictions Total Total

$ 3,823,568 $ - $ 3,823,568 $ 3,617,005
17,687 - 17,687 16,310
215,490 - 215,490 378,915
4,056,745 - 4,056,745 4,012,230
564,544 176,358 740,902 549,502
63.493 - 63,493 43,236

- - - 189

167,970 (167,970) - -
796,007 8,388 804,395 592,927
4,852,752 8,388 4,861,140 4,605,157
3,651,216 - 3,651,216 3,514,210
838,803 - 838,803 841,048
577,324 - 577.324 512,117
5,067,343 - 5,067,343 4,867,375
(214,591) 8,388 {206.,203) (262,218)
403,452 177,970 581,422 843,640

$ 188,861 $ 186,358 $ 375219 $ 581,422
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SCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL

) STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
/ith Comparative Totals for 2018)

Year ended June 30,

2019 2018
Program Services Supporting Services
No. of positions
June 30, Regular Special Management
2019 2018 education education Sub-total and general Total Total
8 7 $ 153,084 $ 171417 $ 325,101 $ 265,991 $ 591,092 $ 516,578
51 50 1.745,788 428.113 2,173,901 - 2,173,901 2,235,115
3 2 - - - 24,480 24,480 30,472
1.899,472 599.530 2,499,002 290.471 2,789,473 2,782,165
469,164 175,286 644,450 68,431 712,881 723,293
6.179 2,060 8,239 - 8.239 28,473
- - - 19.761 19,761 16,821
- - - 22,941 22,941 20,038
104,875 15,375 120,250 - 120,250 93,700
55,132 - 55,132 3,545 58,677 42,364
85,172 18,748 103,920 - 103,920 73,724
20,533 - 20,533 19,679 40.212 42,338
291,719 - 291,719 - 291,719 278,172
69,149 7.683 76.832 - 76.832 49.193
5,290 1,764 7,054 - 7,054 12,211
7,067 1,181 8.248 3,562 11,810 18,908
20,569 - 20,569 6,856 27425 26,457
58,409 - 58,409 30,380 88,789 86,232
7.245 1.115 8.360 2,787 11,147 2.819
9.282 - 9.282 2,320 11,602 9,205
3,145 - 3,145 3,144 6,289 5223
99,183 15.259 114,442 38.147 152,589 71,649
430,678 - 430,678 47,853 478,531 465,753
8,953 802 9.755 17.447 27,202 18,637
$ 3.651,216 $ 838.803 $ 4,490,019 $ 577,324 $ 5,067,343 $ 4,867,375

part of the consolidated financial statements.
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DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

Year ended June 30,

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets $ (206,203) $ (262,218
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided from (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 152,589 71,649
Changes in certain assets and liabilities affecting operations:
Grants and other receivables 61,506 (21,907)
Prepaid expenses (1,052) (47,426)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 105,772 7,070
Accrued payroll and benefits 17,077 (25,238)
Deferred lease liability (4,130) (4,677)
Deferred revenue (25,000) -
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 100,559 (282,747)

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property and equipment (280,940) (17,452)
NET CASH USED FOR
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (280,940) (17,452)
NET DECREASE IN CASH (180,381) (300,199)
Cash at beginning of year 616,985 917,184

CASH ATEND OF YEAR § 436,604 § 616,985

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

-8-




DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE A: THE ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentation and principles of consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Discovery Charter School (the
“School”) and Friends of Discovery Charter School, Inc. (“Friends™), (collectively referred to as the
“Organization”). The Organizations are presenting consolidated financial statements because they have a
common Board of Trustees and economic interest. All intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The Organization

The School is an educational corporation that operates as a charter school in Rochester, New York. On
December 14, 2010 (School’s date of inception), the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New
York granted the School a provisional charter valid for a term of five years and renewable upon expiration.
During 2016, the School’s charter was renewed for a three-year term which expired in June 2019. During 2019,
the School’s charter was renewed for a two-year term which expires in June 2021. The School was established to
prepare students to meet the challenges of a rapidly changing world, providing elementary school children real
skills for the real world through an interdisciplinary program that integrates literacy, language arts,
mathematics. social studies, visual arts and science.

Friends was organized under the laws of the State of New York on February 9, 2006 (Friends’ date of
inception) as a not-for-profit corporation under subparagraph (a)(5) of Section 102 of the Not-For-Profit
Corporation Law as Friends of Community Charter School of Rochester, Inc. Friends was formed to provide
funding and administrative assistance to promote the application for a charter school, to provide ongoing
financial and volunteer support for such school and to engage in any and all activities reasonably related to such
purpose. In 2009, this Organization changed its name to F riends of Discovery Charter School, Inc.

Basis of accounting
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Financial statement presentation
The Organization reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net
assets — net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions: Represents all resources over which the Board of Directors has
discretionary control to use in carrying on the Organization’s operations in accordance with the guidelines
established for the Organization. The Board may designate portions of the current net assets without donor
restrictions for specific purposes, projects or investment.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor) imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are
temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the
donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the
stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been
fulfilled, or both.




DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. Contd

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE A: THE ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d

Revenue and support recognition
Revenue from public school districts is based on the number of students enrolled in the School from each
district. Revenue is recognized when services are performed in accordance with the charter agreement.

Revenue from federal, state and local government grants and contracts are recorded by the School when
qualifying expenditures are incurred and billable or requirements of the grant are met.

Contributions are recognized as revenue in the year the pledge is received and documented.

Contributions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes an unconditional promise to give to the Organization.
Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions if
the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted
contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a restriction expires, net
assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the
statement of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions.

Cash

Cash balances are maintained at financial institutions located in New York State and are insured by the FDIC
up to $250,000 at each institution. In the normal course of business, the cash account balances at any given
time may exceed insured limits. However, the Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts
and does not believe it is exposed to significant risk in cash.

Cash in escrow
The School maintains cash in an escrow account in accordance with the terms of its charter agreement. The
amount in escrow was $75,000 at June 30, 2019 and 2018.

Grants and other receivables

Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts based on its assessment of the current status of
individual receivables from grants, agencies and others. Balances that are still outstanding after management has
used reasonable collection efforts are written off against the allowance for doubtful accounts. There was no
allowance for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2019 and 2018.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-
line method on a basis considered adequate to depreciate the assets over their estimated useful lives, which
range from five to ten years.

Deferred revenue
The School records grant revenue as deferred revenue until it is expended for the purpose of the grant, at which
time it is recognized as revenue.
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DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. Cont'd

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE A: THE ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d

Deferred lease liability

The School leases its facility. The lease contains pre-determined fixed escalations of the base rent. In
accordance with GAAP, the School recognizes the related rent expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term and records the difference between the recognized rental expense and the amounts payable under the lease
as a deferred lease liability.

Tax exempt status
The School and Friends are tax-exempt organizations under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and
applicable state regulations and, accordingly, are exempt from federal and state taxes on income.

The Organization files Form 990 tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and New York State. The tax
returns for the years ended June 30, 2016 through June 30, 2019 are still subject to potential audit by the IRS
and New York State. Management of the Organization believes it has no material uncertain tax positions and,
accordingly it will not recognize any liability for unrecognized tax benefits.

Contributed goods and services

The Organization receives contributed services from volunteers to develop its academic program and to serve
on the Board of Trustees. These services are not valued in the financial statements because they do not require
“specialized skills” and would typically not be purchased if they were not contributed. The School received
some donated transportation and special education services from the local school district. The School was
unable to determine a value for these services.

The School received contributed legal services, professional development services and contributed goods which
were valued at approximately $17,700 and $16,500 which are included in the accompanying statement of
activities and changes in net assets for the years ended June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018, respectively.

In-kind contributions
Gifts and donations other than cash are recorded at fair market value at the date of contribution.

Use of estimates in the preparation of consolidated financial statements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. Cont'd

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE A: THE ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d

Change in accounting principle

During August 2016 FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-14 “Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic
958) Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities”. The main provisions of ASU 2016-14
require a Not-For-Profit (NFP) to:

1) Present on the face of the statement of financial position amounts for two classes of net assets at the end of
the period, rather than three classes. That is, an NFP will report amounts for net assefs with donor
restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions, as well as the currently required amount for total net

assets.

2) Present on the face of the statement of activities the amount of the change in each of the two classes of net
assets (noted in item 1) rather than that of the required three classes as in prior years. An NFP would
continue to report the currently required amount of the change in total net assets for the period.

3) Continue to present on the face of the statement of cash flows the net amount for operating cash flows
using either the direct or indirect method of reporting but no longer require the presentation or disclosure of
the indirect method (reconciliation) if using the direct method.

4) Provide enhanced disclosures about:

a)

b)

d)

e)

Composition of net assets with donor restrictions at the end of the period and how the restrictions
affect the use of resources.

Qualitative information that communicates how a NFP manages its liquid resources available to
meet cash needs for general expenditures within one year of the statement of financial position
date.

Quantitative information, and additional qualitative information, that communicates the availability
of an NFP’s financial assets at the statement of financial position date to meet cash needs for
general expenditures within one year of the statement of financial position date. Availability of a
financial asset may be affected by (1) its nature, (2) external limits imposed by donors, grantors,
laws, and contracts with others, and (3) internal limits imposed by Board of Trustee decisions.

Amounts of expenses by both their natural classification and their functional classification. That
analysis of expenses is to be provided in one location.

Method(s) used to allocate costs among program and support functions.

ASU 2016-14 is effective for financial statements beginning after December 15, 2017 and was applied
retrospectively except for disclosures regarding liquidity and availability of resources, which are presented only
for the current year. There was no effect on total assets or changes in net assets. The Organization has adopted
the amendments effective July 1, 2018.
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DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. Cont'd

JUNE 30. 2019 AND 2018

NOTE A: THE ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d

New accounting pronouncements

Revenue from contracts with customers

[n May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued a new standard related to revenue
recognition. Under the standard, revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of promised goods
or services in an amount that reflects the consideration the entity expects to receive in exchange for those
goods or services. For nonpublic entities, the guidance in this new standard is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim reporting periods within annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2019. The Organization is currently evaluating the provisions of this standard
to determine the impact the new standard will have on the Organization’s financial position or results of
operations.

Leases

In February 2016, the FASB issued a new standard related to leases to increase transparency and
comparability among entities by requiring the recognition of right-of-use (“ROU™) assets and lease liabilities
on the balance sheet. Most prominent among the changes in the standard is the recognition of ROU assets
and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases under current U.S. GAAP. For
nonpublic entities, the guidance in this new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2019, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. There has
been an exposure draft proposed that would delay this ASU from the initial timetable and, if passed, will take
effect for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, and for interim periods within fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2021. The Organization is currently evaluating the provisions of this standard
to determine the impact the new standard will have on the Organization’s financial position or results of
operations.

Comparatives for the year ended June 30, 2018

The consolidated financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total
but not by net asset class or functional classification. Such information does not include sufficient detail to
constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018, from which the summarized information was derived.

Subsequent events

The Organization has conducted an evaluation of potential subsequent events occurring after the statement of
financial position date through September 17, 2019, which is the date the financial statements are available to
be issued. No subsequent events requiring disclosure were noted, except as disclosed in Notes C and K.
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DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont'd

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE B: LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other contractual
commitments. The Organization’s main source of liquidity is its cash accounts.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the
Organization considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities of teaching, and public service as well
as the conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to be general expenditures.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, the Organization
operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover general expenditures not
covered by donor-restricted resources. Refer to the statement of cash flows which identifies the sources and
uses of the Organization’s cash.

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use,
within one year of the statement of financial position date, comprise the following at June 30, 2019:

Amount
Cash $ 436,604
Grants and other receivables 151,235

Total financial assets available to management
for general expenditures within one year $ 587,839

The Organization has a line of credit with maximum borrowings of $400,000 which they could draw upon in
the event of unanticipated liquidity needs. At June 30, 2019, no amount was outstanding on this line.

NOTE C: SCHOOL FACILITY

In July 2013, the School entered into a facility lease for its current location through June 30, 2019. The School
renewed their lease for their current location effective July 1, 2019 with an expiration date of June 30, 2021.
Renewal options are available through June 30, 2056. Rent is based each year on the number of square feet
used by the School. The square footage rate for the space for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 is $9.73,
$10.02 for 2020 and $10.32 for 2021. Rent expense incurred under this lease for the years ended June 30, 2019
and 2018 was approximately $417,000 and $408,000, respectively.

The approximate future minimum payments on this agreement based on the current square footage usage is as

follows:
Year ending June 30, Amount
2020 $ 434,000
2021 447,000
$ 881,000
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DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont'd

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE D: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following:

June 30,
2019 2018

Classroom/playground equipment $ 66,554 § 48,406
Office equipment 18,304 18,304
Computer equipment 454,828 364,859
Food service equipment 13,356 6,648
Leasehold improvements 273,493 107,378

826,535 545,595
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 506,703 354,114

$ 319,832 $ 191,481

NOTE E: NET ASSETS

Net assets without donor restrictions are as follows:

June 30,
2019 2018
Undesignated net (deficiency) assets $ (130,971) § 211,971
Invested in property and equipment 319,832 191,481

$ 188,861 $ 403,452

Net assets with donor restrictions consisted of the following:

June 30,
2019 2018
Child Nutrition Program $ 172,858 $ 164,851
Board Development Training 3,500 -
Habits of Character and Scholarship - 3,119
After School Program 10,000 10,000

§ 186,358 $ 177,970
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DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont'd

JUNE 30, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE I': OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases office equipment under non-cancelable lease agreements expiring at various dates
through June 2023. The approximate future minimum payments on these agreements are as follows:

Year ending June 30, Amount
2020 $ 9,400
2021 8,900
2022 8,900
2023 8,200
35400

NOTE G: LINE OF CREDIT

The School has available $400,000 of a line of credit with a bank, with interest at prime plus 1.5% (an effective
rate of 7% at June 30, 2019). There were no borrowings outstanding on this line at June 30, 2019 or 2018.

NOTE H: RETIREMENT PLANS

The Organization participates in the New York State Teachers’ Retirement System (NYSTRS). This System is
a cost sharing multiple employer public employee retirement system. The System offers a wide range of plans
and benefits which are related to years of service and final average salary, vesting of retirement benefits, death
and disability.

The New York State Teachers’ Retirement Board administers NYSTRS. The System provides benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries as authorized by the Education Law and the Retirement and Social Security Law of
the State of New York. NYSTRS issues a publicly available financial report that contains financial statements
and required supplementary information for the System. The report may be obtained by writing to NYSTRS,
10 Corporate Woods, Albany, NY 12211-2395.

The System is noncontributory for the employee, except for those who joined the System after July 27, 1976
and before January 1, 2010 with less than ten years membership, who contribute 3% of their salary. Those
joining on or after January 1, 2010 are required to contribute 3.5% of their annual salary for their entire career.
Pursuant to Article 11 of the Education Law, the New York State Teachers’ Retirement Board establishes rates
annually for NYSTRS.
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DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont'd

JUNE 30. 2019 AND 2018

NOTE H; RETIREMENT PLANS, Cont’d

The Organization is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate, currently 10.62% of the annual
covered payroll for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. The rate applicable to the year ended June 30, 2018
was 9.80%. The Organization’s contributions made to the system was equal to 100% of the contributions
required for each year. The required contributions for the current year and preceding year was:

2019 § 236,535
2018 244,089

Effective July 2012, the School established an Employee Retirement 403(b) Plan for all employees. The
School may make a discretionary contribution to the Plan. There were no discretionary contributions made by
the School for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

NOTE [: CONTINGENCY

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by funding sources. Such audits might result in
disallowance of costs submitted for reimbursement by the Organization. Management is of the opinion that
such disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements for such potential claims.

NOTE J: CONCENTRATIONS

At June 30, 2019 and 2018 approximately 100% of grants and other receivables are due from the New York
State Department of Education relating to certain grants.

The School’s primary source of funding is obtained from the New York State Department of Education and is
reported as public school district income in the accompanying statement of activities and changes in net assets.
This funding is based on the home district of each pupil and is received from various districts. The total per
pupil allocation income for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $4,039,058 and 3,995,920,
respectively. This is approximately 83% and 87% of total operating revenue and support for the years ended
June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The per-pupil rate is set annually by the State based on the school
district in which the School’s students are located.

NOTE K: COMMITMENTS

The School has a yearly services agreement with a not-for-profit organization to provide administrative
management, human resources and information technology support. This expense amounted to approximately
$76.200 and $73,980 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

In July 2019, the School entered into a contract with an Institute to participate in their School Turnaround
Program. The program is a three-year agreement that commences in July 2019 and extends through June 2022
for a total cost of $195,000.
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DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. Cont'd

JUNE 30,2019 AND 2018

NOTE L: FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is
consistently applied. All expenses that are allocated to more than one program or supporting function are
allocated on the basis of estimates of time and effort.
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OTHER CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL INFORMATION




MIMIB

MENGEL METZGER BARR & CO. ue

Certifiod Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Board of Trustees
Discovery Charter School

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Discovery Charter School as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2019 and we have issued our report thereon dated September 17, 2019, which contained an unmodified
opinion on those consolidated financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements as a whole. The 2019 consolidating financial information hereinafter is presented
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended June 30, 2019, as a whole.

Monged] WM;’&. LS

Rochester, New York
September 17, 2019
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DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Grants and other receivables

Prepaid expenses
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net

OTHER ASSET - cash in escrow

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and benefits
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Without donot restrictions
With donor restrictions

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2019

Friends of

Discovery

Discovery Charter

Charter School School, Inc. Eliminations Total

$ 426,513 $ 10,091 $ - $ 436,604
151,235 - - 151,235
50,826 - - 50,826
628,574 10,091 - 638,665
319,832 - - 319,832
75,000 - - 75,000
$ 1,023,406 $ 10,091 $ - $ 1,033,497
$ 228,209 $ - $ - $ 228,209
430,069 - - 430,069
658,278 - - 658,278
188,770 91 - 188,861
176,358 10,000 - 186,358
365,128 10,091 - 375,219
$ 1,023,406 $ 10,091 $ - $ 1,033,497
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DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Friends of
Discovery
Discovery Charter
Charter School School, Inc. Eliminations Total
Operating revenue and support:
Public school districts:
Per pupil allocation income $ 3,823,568 $ - $ - $ 3,823,568
District textbooks in-kind 17,687 - - 17,687
Students with disabilities 215,490 - - 215,490
Total revenue from public school districts 4,056,745 - - 4,056,745
Federal and State grants 740,902 - - 740,902
Private grants 63,493 - - 63,493
Total other revenue and support 804,395 - - 804,395
TOTAL OPERATING
REVENUE AND SUPPORT 4,861,140 - - 4,861.140
Expenses:
Program services:
Regular education 3,651,216 - - 3,651,216
Special education 838,803 - - 838,803
Supporting services:
Management and general 577,324 - - 577,324
TOTAL EXPENSES 5,067,343 - - 5,067,343
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (206,203) - - (206,203}
Net assets at beginning of year 571,331 10,091 - 581,422
NET ASSETS ATEND OF YEAR  § 365,128 $ 10,091 $ - $ 375219
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REPORT REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS




MIMIB/

MENGEL METZGER BARR & CO. ur

Certitind Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
Discovery Charter School

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of Discovery Charter School, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and the related consolidated statements of
activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 17, 2019.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Discovery Charter
School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Discovery Charter School’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Discovery Charter School’s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Organization’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

100 Chestnut Street | Suite 1200 | Rochester, NY 14604 | P 585.423,1860 | I 585.423.5966 f mengelmetzgerbarr.com
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Discovery Charter School’s consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

WWM/Q. LLP

Rochester, New York
September 17, 2019
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MIMIB

MENGEL METZGER BARR & CO. ur

Certifieodg Publie Acrountants

September 17, 2019

The Board of Trustees
Discovery Charter School and
Friends of Discovery Charter School, Inc.

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Discovery Charter School and Friends of Discovery
Charter School, Inc. (the “Organization™) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and have issued our report
thereon dated September 17, 2019. Professional standards require that we advise you of the following matters
relating to our audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Consolidated Financial Statement Audit

As communicated in our engagement letter dated May 3, 2019, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the consolidated financial statements that have been
prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the consolidated financial
statements does not relieve you or management of its respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable,
rather than absolute, assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the Organization solely for the purpose of
determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not

required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you.

We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
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Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit
We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you.
Compliance with all Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate and our firm have complied with all relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence.

Qualitative Aspects of the Organization’s Significant Accounting Practices
Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Organization is included in Note A to the consolidated financial statements. As
disclosed in Note A to the financial statements, during the year, the Organization adopted Financial Accounting
Standards Board Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14 Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-
Profit Entities. No matters have come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to
inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of
significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance
Or consensus.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience
about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly
sensitive because of their significance to the consolidated financial statements and because of the possibility that
future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the consolidated financial statements were the collectability of
grants receivable as well as the allocation of costs for the statement of functional expenses. We evaluated the key
factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates and determined that they are reasonable in relation to the
basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Consolidated Financial Statement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the Organization’s consolidated
financial statements relate to revenue and support recognition, which is referred to in the notes of the consolidated
financial statements.

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the audit.

WE VALUE YOUR FUTURE




Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial. and communicate them to the
appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the effect of
uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions. account balances or
disclosures, and the consolidated financial statements as a whole. No such misstatements were identified during
our audit.

Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or
not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, which could be
significant to the Organization’s consolidated financial statements or the auditor’s report. No such disagreements
arose during the course of the audit.

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the management
representation letter.

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases. management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters.
Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other accountants regarding
auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings or Issues

In the normal course of our professional association with the Organization, we generally discuss a variety of
matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, business conditions affecting the
Organization, and business plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the
matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the Organization’s auditors.

Other Matters

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the consolidated financial statements, we made
certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complies with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and
complete in relation to our audit of the consolidated financial statements. We compared and reconciled the
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves.

WE VALUE YOUR FUTURE



Should you desire further information concerning these matters, Michelle Cain or Kate Welc would be happy to
meet with you at your convenience.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Finance Committee, Board of Trustees and
management of Discovery Charter School and Friends of Discovery Charter School, Inc. and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Mongel, Hetyges, loan/ ¥ Co. L4F°

MENGEL, METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP

WE VALUE YOUR FUTURE







ANYSED » Annual Financial Statement Audit Report

School Name: Discovery Charter School
Date (Report is due Nov. 1): November 1, 2019
Primary District of Location Greece Central School District

(If NYC select NYC DOE):

If located in NYC DOE select CSD: |-

School Fiscal Contact Name: | aurie Corbett

School Fiscal Contact Email:

School Fiscal Contact Phone:

School Audit Firm Name: Mengel, Metzger, Barand Co_, LLP

School Audit Contact Name: Michelle Cain

School Audit Contact Email:

School Audit Contact Phone:

Audit Period: 2018-19

Prior Year: 2017-18

The following items are required to be included:

1.) The independent auditor's report on financial statements and notes.

2.) Excel template file containing the Financial Position, Statement of Activities, Cash Flow and Functional
Expenses worksheets.

3.) Reports on intemal controls over financial reporting and on compliance.

The additional items listed below should be included if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the items are
not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school did not expend
federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the management letter response will be
submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the report); etc.

ltem If not included, state the reason(s) below (if not applicable fill in N/A):
Management Letter N/A
Management Letter Response N/A
Federal Single Audit (A-133) N/A
Corrective Action Plan N/A







Discovery Charter School
Statement of Financial Position

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Grants and contracts receivable
Accounts receivables
Prepaid Expenses
Contributions and other receivables
Other current assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Building and Equipment, net
Restricted Cash
Security Deposits
Other Non-Current Assets
TOTAL NON-CURRENT

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefits
Current Portion of Loan Payable
Due to Related Parties
Refundable Advances
Deferred Revenue
Other Current Liabilities
TOTAL CURRENT

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year
Deferred Rent
Due to Related Party
Other Long-Term Liabilities
TOTAL LONG-TERM

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted

as of June 30

2019 2018
436,604 616,985
151,235 212,741

50,826 49,774
638,665 879,500
319,832 191,481

75,000 75,000
394,832 266,481

1,033,497 1,145,981
228,209 122,437
430,069 412,992

- 25,000

= 4,130

658,278 564,559
658,278 564,559
188,861 403,452



Temporarily restricted 186,358 177,970
Permanently restricted - -
TOTAL NET ASSETS 375,219 581,422

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 1,033,497 1,145,981




OPERATING REVENUE
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - Reg. Ed
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - SPED
State and Local Per Pupil Facilities Revenue
Federal Grants
State and City Grants
Other Operating Income
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

EXPENSES
Program Services
Regular Education
Special Education
Other Programs
Total Program Services
Management and general
Fundraising
TOTAL EXPENSES

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE
Interest and Other Income
Contributions and Grants
Fundraising Support
Investments
Donated Services
Other Support and Revenue
TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE

Net Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on Disposal $

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR
PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

Discovery Charter School
Statement of Activities
as of June 30

2019 2018
Unrestricted Temporarily Total Total
Restricted

$ 3,823,568 $ -3 3,823,568 3,617,005
215,490 - 215,490 378,915
277,544 176,358 453,902 265,619
304,687 - 304,687 300,193
4,621,289 176,358 4,797,647 4,561,732
$ 3,651,216 $ - $ 3,651,216 3,514,210
838,803 - 838,803 841,048
4,490,019 4,490,019 4,355,258
577,324 - 577,324 512,117
5,067,343 R 5,067,343 4,867,375
(446,054) 176,358 (269,696) (305,643)
$ -3 - $ : -
63,493 ; 63,493 43,236
- - - 189
63,493 - 63,493 43,425
167,970 $ (167,970) $ - -
(214,591) 8,388 (206,203) (262,218)
$ 403,452 $ 177,970 $ 581,422 843,640



NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 188,861 $ 186,358 $ 375219 3§ 581,422




Discovery Charter School
Statement of Cash Flows
as of June 30

2019 2018
CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in net assets (206,203) (262,218)
Revenues from School Districts = -
Accounts Receivable = =
Due from School Districts - -
Depreciation 152,589 71,649
Grants Receivable 61,506 (21,907)
Due from NYS = =
Grant revenues - -
Prepaid Expenses (1,052) (47,426)
Accounts Payable 105,772 7,070
Accrued Expenses 17,077 (25,238)
Accrued Liabilities (4,130) (4,677)
Contributions and fund-raising activities - -
Miscellaneous sources - -
Deferred Revenue (25,000) -
Interest payments - -
Other - -
Other - -
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 100,559 (282,747)
CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of equipment (280,940) (17,452)
Other - -
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (280,940) (17,452)
CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments on long-term debt - -
Other - -
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - -
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (180,381) (300,199)
Cash at beginning of year 616,985 917,184
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 436,604 616,985




Personnel Services Costs
Administrative Staff Personnel
Instructional Personnel
Non-Instructional Personnel

Total Salaries and Staff

Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes

Retirement

Management Company Fees

Legal Service

Accounting / Audit Services

Other Purchased / Professional /

Consulting Services

Building and Land Rent / Lease

Repairs & Maintenance

Insurance

Utilities

Supplies / Materials

Equipment / Furnishings

Staff Development

Marketing / Recruitment

Technology

Food Service

Student Services

Office Expense

Depreciation

OTHER

Total Expenses

Discovery Charter School
Statement of Functional Expenses
as of June 30

2019
Program Services Supporting Services
No. of Regular Special Other Total Fundraising Management Total
Positions Education Education Education and General
$ $ $ $ $ $ $
8.00 153,684 171,417 - 325,101 - 265,991 265,991
51.00 1,745,788 428,113 - 2,173,901 - - -
3.00 - - - - - 24,480 24,480
62.00 1,899,472 599,530 - 2,499,002 - 290,471 290,471
469,164 175,286 - 644,450 - 68,431 68,431
- - - - - 19,761 19,761
- - - - - 22,941 22,941
160,007 15,375 - 175,382 - 3,545 3,545
430,678 - - 430,678 - 47,853 47,853
3,145 - - 3,145 - 3,144 3,144
20,569 - - 20,569 - 6,856 6,856
105,705 18,748 - 124,453 - 19,679 19,679
11,469 3,824 - 15,293 - - -
74,936 1,115 - 76,051 - 35,487 35,487
291,719 - - 291,719 - - -
69,149 7,683 - 76,832 - - -
7,067 1,181 - 8,248 - 3,562 3,562
99,183 15,259 - 114,442 - 38,147 38,147
8,953 802 - 9,755 - 17,447 17,447
$ 3,651,216 $ 838,803 $ - $ 4,490,019 $ - 8 577,324 $ 577,324




2018

Total
$

591,092 516,578
2,173,901 2,235,115
24,480 30,472
2,789,473 2,782,165
712,881 723,293
19,761 16,821
22,941 20,038
178,927 136,064
478,531 465,753
6,289 5,223
27,425 26,457
144,132 116,063
15,293 40,684
111,538 98,255
291,719 278,172
76,832 49,193
11,810 18,908
152,589 71,649
27,202 18,637

5,067,343  $ 4,867,375




Entry 5c Additional Financial Docs
Last updated: 11/15/2019

The additional items listed below should be uploaded if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the
items are not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school
did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the corrective action
plan will be submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the
report); etc.

Section Heading

1. Management Letter
(No response)

Explanation for not uploading A written management letter was not issued

the Management Letter.

2. Form 990
(No response)

Explanation for not uploading Form 990 is not yet completed and was put on extension
the Form 990.

3. Federal Single Audit

Note: A copy of the Federal Single Audit must be filed with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. Please refer
to OMB Uniform Guidelines for the federal filing requirements.

(No response)

Explanation for not uploading A federal single audit was not required federal Single Audit was
the Federal Single Audit. not required because the school did not expend federal funds
in excess of the threshold of $750,000.

4. CSP Agreed Upon Procedure Report

(No response)

Explanation for not uploading Discovery did not receive CSP funds in the 18 19 FY

the procedure report.

1/2



5. Evidence of Required Escrow Account

Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the
escrow account per school is $100,000.

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/121014123/pN6HONalce/

Explanation for not uploading (No response)
the Escrow evidence.

6. Corrective Action Plan

A Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations, which must
include:

a. The person responsible

b. The date action was taken, or will be taken
c. Description of the action taken

d. Evidence of implementation (if available)

(No response)

Explanation for not uploading No corrective action plan was required.

the Corrective Action Plan.

2/2
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Entry 5d Financial Services Contact Information

Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools should enter the financial contact information
requested and upload the independent auditor's report and internal controls reports as one combined
file.

DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading

1. School Based Fiscal Contact Information

School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact School Based Fiscal Contact
Name Email Phone

2. Audit Firm Contact Information

School Audit Contact  School Audit Contact School Audit Contact Years Working With
Name Email Phone This Audit Firm

3. If applicable, please provide contact information for the school's outsourced
financial services firm.

Firm Name Contact Mailing Email Phone Years with
Person Address Firm

Premier

Accounting Anne Culver

1/1



New York State Education Department

Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the
Board of Regents

2018-19 Budget & Cash Flow Template

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates

Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE

Enter information into the GRAY cells

Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on
that particular item

School district per-pupil tuition information is located on the State Aid website at
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate
additional districts if necessary.

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enroliment would
reference the applicable page number in Section |, C of the application narrative.




Discovery Charter School

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

Please Note The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 15-5. This wm populate the data in row 10.

Total Revenue

Total Expenses

Net Income

Actual Student Enroliment
Total Paid Student Enrollment

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &

EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL
4,454,623 806,768 - - - 5,261,391
3,132,460 1,211,620 - - 917,311 5,261,391
1,322,163 (404,852) - - (917,311) -

258 22 -

PROGRAM SERVICES

REGULAR

SPECIAL

SUPPORT SERVICES

MANAGEMENT &

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES
Per Pupil Revenue

District of Location (Greece Central School District)
Rochester City School District

East Irondequoit School District

School District 4 (Enter Name)

School District 5 (Enter Name)

Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus

Other
Other State Revenue

CY Per Pupil Rate

EDUCATION

EDUCATION

OTHER

FUNDRAISING

GENERAL

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title |
Title Funding - Other
School Food Service (Free Lunch)
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation

Other
Other Federal Revenue

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising
Erate Reimbursement
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments,

NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.)

Food Service (Income from meals)
Text Book
Other Local Revenue

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS
Executive Management
Instructional Management

$12,379.00 222,822 37,137 - - - 259,959
$13,684.00 3,243,108 259,996 - - - 3,503,104
$12,957.00 38,871 - - - - 38,871
3,504,801 207,133 3,801,934
[ - 475,000 | -1 -1 -1 475,000
70,000 = = = - 70,000
3,574,801 772,133 4,346,934
- 34,635 - - - 34,635
167,185 - - - 167,185
46,007 - - - - 46,007
317,282 - - - - 317,282
16,620 - - - - 16,620
547,094 34,635 581,729
35,000 - - - - 35,000
58,355 = = = - 58,355
16,310 - - - - 16,310
223,063 - - - - 223,063
332,728 332,728
4,454,623 806,768 5,261,391
No. of Positions
1.00 72,028 - - - 72,028 144,056
3.00 106,478 55,000 - - - 161,478




Discovery Charter School

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

Please Note The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 15-5. This wm populate the data in row 10.

Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Net Income

Actual Student Enroliment
Total Paid Student Enroliment

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &

EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL
4,454,623 806,768 - 5,261,391
3,132,460 1,211,620 917,311 5,261,391
1,322,163 (404,852) (917,311) -

258 22 -
258 22 280

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES
REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 3.00 68,614 130,679 33.250 232,543
CFO / Director of Finance - - = - -
Operation / Business Manager 1.00 8,081 - 72,727 80,808
Administrative Staff 2.00 9,318 - 83,862 93,180
TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 264,519 185,679 261,867 712,065
INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular 19.00 1,084,857 - - 1,084,857
Teachers - SPED 13.00 - 640,689 - 640,689
Substitute Teachers - - - - -
Teaching Assistants 2.00 55,350 = - 55,350
Specialty Teachers 5.00 224,387 - - 224,387
Aides 3.00 64,911 64,911 - 129,822
Therapists & Counselors 1.00 32,214 32,214 - 64,428
Other = = - = -
TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 1,461,719 737,814 2,199,533
NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse o o = - =
Librarian = = = - -
Custodian = - - - -
Security - - - - -
Other 1.85 - - 32,000 32,000
SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS [ 55 1,726,238 923,493 203,867 2,943,508
PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes 165,351 92,349 29,387 287,087
Fringe / Employee Benefits 189,068 46,175 14,694 249,937
Retirement / Pension 164,361 91,267 11,191 266,819
TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 518,780 229,791 55,272 803,843
TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 2,245,018 1,153,284 349,139 3,747,441
CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit - = 30,000 30,000
Legal - - 13,000 13,000
Management Company Fee - = = -
Nurse Services = - - -
Food Service / School Lunch = - 283,691 283,691
Payroll Services = - 4,500 4,500
Special Ed Services = - - -
Titlement Services (i e. Title 1) = = - -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 161,795 23,255 47,500 232,550
TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 161,795 23,255 378,691 563,741




Discovery Charter School

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

Please Note The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 15-5. This wm populate the data in row 10.

Total Revenue

Total Expenses

Net Income

Actual Student Enroliment
Total Paid Student Enrollment

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &

EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL
4,454,623 806,768 B - 5,261,391
3,132,460 1,211,620 - 917,311 5,261,391
1,322,163 (404,852) - (917,311) -

258 22 -
258 22 280

REGULAR

PROGRAM SERVICES
SPECIAL

SUPPORT SERVICES

MANAGEMENT &

SCHOOL OPERATIONS

EDUCATION

EDUCATION

OTHER

FUNDRAISING

GENERAL

Board Expenses = - - 250 250
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 20,000 - - - 20,000
Special Ed Supplies & Materials - 6,000 - - 6,000
Textbooks / Workbooks 27,729 3,081 - - 30,810
Supplies & Materials other - - - - -
Equipment / Furniture 8,000 - - - 8,000
Telephone 15,000 - - 20,474 35,474
Technology 55,000 20,000 - 25,000 100,000
Student Testing & Assessment 9,000 1,000 - - 10,000
Field Trips 12,000 - - - 12,000
Transportation (student) 42,500 2,500 - - 45,000
Student Services - other 250 - - - 250
Office Expense - - - 27,500 27,500
Staff Development 13,000 2,000 - - 15,000
Staff Recruitment - - - - -
Student Recruitment / Marketing 5,000 = = - 5,000
School Meals / Lunch - - 3,000 3,000
Travel (Staff) 7,000 500 - 500 8,000
Fundraising = - - - -
Other 6,000 - - 2,950 8,950
TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 220,479 35,081 79,674 335,234
FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance 21,200 - - 7,360 28,560
Janitorial - - - - -
Building and Land Rent / Lease 379,112 - - 42,123 421,235
Repairs & Maintenance - - - 4,080 4,080
Equipment / Furniture - - - 2,040 2,040
Security = - - - -
Utilities 42,336 - - 4,704 47,040
TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 442,648 60,307 502,955
DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 52,520 - - 49,500 102,020
DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY 10,000 - - - 10,000

TOTAL EXPENSES

NET INCOME

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*

District of Location (Greece Central School District)
Rochester City School District
East Irondequoit School District

3,132,460

1,211,620

917,311

5,261,391

REGULAR SPECIAL TOTAL
EDUCATION EDUCATION ENROLLED
18 3 21
237 19 256
3 - 3




Discovery Charter School

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

School District 4 (Enter Name)
School District 5 (Enter Name)
TOTAL ENROLLMENT

REVENUE PER PUPIL

EXPENSES PER PUPIL

Please Note The student enroliment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10.

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT &
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL
Total Revenue 4,454,623 806,768 - - - 5,261,391
Total Expenses 3,132,460 1,211,620 - - 917,311 5,261,391
Net Income 1,322,163 (404,852) - - (917,311) -
Actual Student Enroliment 258 22 -
Total Paid Student Enrollment 258 22 280

REGULAR
EDUCATION

PROGRAM SERVICES

SPECIAL
EDUCATION

OTHER

SUPPORT SERVICES

FUNDRAISING

MANAGEMENT &
GENERAL




Assumgtions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note

when

Addt'l per pupil to be paid out after 4/1/19

Fresh Fruits & Vegetables Grant

Use of Fund Balance

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent)

School Director 1 0 FTE

Academic Coaches 2.0 FTE, EL Instructional Guide 10 FTE




Assumgtions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note pti when applicabl

Assistant Director 1 0 FTE, Special Education Coordinator 1.0 FTE, Dean 1.0 FTE

Operations Manager

Asst Operations Manager FTE 1 0, Administrative Assistant 1.0 FTE

Intervention 6.0 FTE. SPED Teachers 7.0 FTE

Art 1.0 FTE, Music 1.0 FTE, PE 30 FTE

Social Emotional Support Specialist 3.0 FTE

Social Worker 1.0 FTE

Cafeteria Staff 1.85 FTE




Assumgtions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note

when




Assumptions

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note

when

i




Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name:

_Robert Stiles

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Discovery Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Secretary
Chair of Governance Committee

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes _ X__No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes X _No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

NONE
Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)

5.

Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

NONE
Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducte the family member of Steps
the school(s) d business household holding an P
: : taken to
conducted interest in the avold
orga!mzatlop conflict of
conducting business intorast
with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest




Robert Stiles 20 L b July 13,2019

Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

last revised 08/21/2018



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of Trustees Member

Name: Christian P. Wilkens

Name of Charter School Education Corporation: Discovery Charter School

1.

List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees (“Board”) (e.g. president,
treasurer, parent representative).
Member, Board of Trustees

Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation? Yes _ X No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school, education corporation,
and/or an entity that provides comprehensive management services (“CMQ”), whether for-profit or
not-for-profit, which contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; or
do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling interest in, a business or
entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans to contract or do business with, the charter
school, education corporation, and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not
limited to, the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

__Yes _X_No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your responsibilities, your salary
and your start date.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or any of your
immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house have held or engaged
in with the charter school(s) operated by the education corporation during the time you have
served on the Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no such
interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-3 above,
you need not disclose again your employment status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of financial Steps taken to avoid a Name of person holding

interest/transaction conflict of interest, (e.g., interest or engaging in
did not vote, did not transaction and

participate in discussion) relationship to you

None

5.

Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, franchise
holding company, joint-stock company, business or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or
other organization or group of people doing business with the school(s) operated by the education
corporation and in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your
immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally
partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) through a management
or services agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in the
organization, and the relationship between such organization and the school(s). If there was no
financial interest, write “None.”



Organization | Nature of Approximate Name of Trustee and/or Stebs
conducting | business value of the immediate family member of P
. . . . taken to
business conducted business household holding an interest .
. . o - avoid
with the conducted in the organization conducting .
i . conflict of
school(s) business with the school(s) interest
and the nature of the interest
None.
7/16/2019
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may be made available to
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. Personal contact
information provided below will be redacted.

last revised 08/21/2018
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4. ldentify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
Plegse write “INon if applicab not leavelthis space ank.
A—x Pl TN e -

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”



Adas v 2

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting | business | e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducte the family member of Steps
the school(s) d business household holding an P
: : taken to
conducted interest in the :
A avoid
organization .
: ¢ conflict of
conducting business .
interest

with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest

/ e 2, A/ &2 o S - -'—“*‘“7/

Yg’/{\“ﬂ‘: 7//9/510/?

Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

last revised 08/21/2018



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name:

Sarah Lsler

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Diss /mjf (bhwder Seheot

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
("Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

2. Are you an yployee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes ‘/No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




Edsler 2

4. |dentify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)
’/P/[’e,a;e wr/@/"ﬁow éupp_u@a-bmm{s space blank.

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”



Ete terr 3

= /Vo
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Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducte the family member of
. : Steps
the school(s) d business household holding an
S ; taken to
conducted interest in the 2
organization S
: 3 conflict of
conducting business frrlreet
with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest
Please writle “"None” iff applicable. Do not leave this spacé blank.

,—/{/Z/d///\/ gjg‘?“/‘?&

ignature

/515
Date!

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of

Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.




Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

N ba Nia M. )e’z/ec/ bﬁ"‘/ /c’

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

)6’5/4/57?’/6 D/;(cw%’, C /4[1 L/feg -fc‘;[;oa /

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

\"’C(’ C(AMMQA, Pg»’%/\ncl /f‘(aclen,dc, /_‘:\A(t’[/té’d(’ ({Mmr/ %{/
Nowma g ( um/mlfee

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease o:‘yalar personal property to the said entities?

No

Yes

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.



Dedee 72—

4. ldentify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

participate in

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to

you

discussion)

a N i/ /ﬁ/g not leavelthis space blank.

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”



ﬂ{(/{fL >

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting business e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducte the family member of Stiie
the school(s) d business household holding an takerF: to
conducted interest in the :
organization avgld
conducting business cpnﬂlct al
interest

with the school(s) and
the nature of the

interest
Mo g
//’\
/, 1A
. {(&&[1/{/@&/&& é%e’él%/z/ . t7///// /7
ignature ate

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

last revised 08/21/2018



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name: Sara Varhus

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation): Discovery Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
("Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Board Chair

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes _ X No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes X _ No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not fransaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you
discussion)

Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”



Organization | Nature of | Approximat ] Name of Trustee

conducting | business | evalueof | and/orimmediate

business with | conducte the |  family member of Stéii

the school(s) d business household holding an taker? to
conducted interest in the .
C avoid
organization confiict of
conducting business ;

interest

with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest

NONE

Signature %”@4 K &J/\V%/W Date % .)7}} /0/07

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.

last revised 08/21/2018



Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
Trustees Member

Name: Lisa Lewis

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

Discovery Charter School

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes _ X _No

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

3. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to,
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities?

Yes __ X_No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in you

discussion)

Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”



Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee

conducting business | e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducte the family member of Stebs
the school(s) d business household holding an taker? to
conducted interest in the :
o avoid
organization conflict of
conducting business biterest

with the school(s) and
the nature of the

interest
None
Sara Varhus for Lisa Lewis August 31, 2019
Signature Date

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.




Dlsclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of
: Trustees Member

Name:

TamiKa (Tmn

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education
corporation):

1.

2.

3.

msmwur% Chour-ter Spheo |

List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative).

Represtnioctive.

Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation?
Yes ,Ao

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date.

Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school,
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive -
management services (‘CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation;
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation,
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not Ilmlted to,
the lease of r?I or personal property to the said entities?

Yes No

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.




4.

Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s)
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment
status, salary, etc.

Date(s) Nature of Steps taken to Name of person
financial avoid a conflict | holding interest or
interest/transacti of interest, engaging in
on (e.g., did not transaction and
vote, did not relationship to
participate in | you

discussion)

NONL

5.

Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm,
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.”

Organization | Nature of | Approximat Name of Trustee
conducting | business | e value of and/or immediate
business with | conducte the family member of
the school(s) d business | household holding an
conducted interest in the

organization
conducting business
with the school(s) and
the nature of the
interest

Steps
taken to
avoid
conflict of
interest

AL




Signature Date

/I(MMO,Q{MM | ~/15[2019

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of
Information Law. Personal contact information provided below will be redacted.
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Entry 8 BOT Table

1. SUNY AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only.
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide

information for all

VOTING and NON VOTING trustees.

1. Current Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member)

Position
on the
Board

Trustee
Name
and
Email
Address

Scott
Adair

Treasurer

Donna

Dedee

Vice
Chair

Sarah
Etsler

Other

Lisa M.
Lewis
Other

Robert

Stiles Secretary

Sara
Varhus

Committ
ee
Affiliation
S

Executive

Audit/Fin
ance

Executive

Personnel

Executive

Personnel

Audit/Fin
ance

Executive

Governan
ce

Executive

Audit/Fin

Voting

Member

Per By
Laws
(Y/N)

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

1/3

Number
of Terms
Served

Start
Date of
Current
Term
(MM/DD/Y
YYY)

07/31/20
16

07/31/20
18

7/31/201
8

7/31/201
7

7/31/201
8

7/31/201

End Date
of
Current
Term
(MM/DD/Y
YYY)

07/31/20
19

07/31/20
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7/31/202
1

7/31/202
0

7/31/202
1

7/31/201

Board
Meetings
Attended
During
2018 19

12

12

12

12
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Christian
Wilkens Academic
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ee
Tamika
Jackson
8 Parent Yes 1 7/31/201 7/31/202 5 or less
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la. Are there more than 9 No

members of the Board of

Trustees?

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only.
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response
relative to all trustees.

a. Total Number of BOT Members on

June 30, 2019 8

b.Total Number of Members Added >

During 2018 19

c. Total Number of Members who 1

Departed during 2018 19

d.Total Number of members in 2018 19,

as set by in Bylaws, Resolution or no more than 15 voting members
Minutes
3. Number of Board meetings 16

held during 2018-19

2/3



4. Number of Board meetings 13
scheduled for 2019-20

Thank you.
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ﬁ Entry 9 - Board Meeting Minutes

Created: 08/01/2019 « Last updated: 08/23/2019

Instructions for submitting minutes of the BOT monthly meetings

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must either provide a link to a complete set of
minutes that are posted on the charter school website, or upload a complete set of board meeting
minutes from July 2018 June 2019, which should match the number of meetings held during the 2018 19

school year.

DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL

Are all monthly BOT meeting
minutes posted, which should
match the number of meetings
held during 2018-19 school year,

on the charter school's website?

A. Provide if posted on the
charter school's website a URL
link to the Monthly Board
Meeting Minutes, which should
match the number of meetings
held during the 2018-19 school
year.

Yes

https://www.rochesterdiscovery.com/about dcs/board of

trustees meeting minutes/

1/1



Entry 9 - Board Meeting Minutes

Last updated: 08/01/2019

Instructions for submitting minutes of the BOT monthly meetings

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must either provide a link to a complete set of
minutes that are posted on the charter school website, or upload a complete set of board meeting
minutes from July 2018 June 2019, which should match the number of meetings held during the 2018 19
school year.

DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL

Are all monthly BOT meeting No
minutes posted, which should

match the number of meetings

held during 2018-19 school year,

on the charter school's website?

B. Upload all monthly Board meeting minutes, which should match the number of
meetings held during the 2018-19 school year.

Combine all monthly meeting minutes into one .PDF file.

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/110427378/WwNFCVDEEJA/

1/1



DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL
Annual Meeting Minutes
July 20, 2018

The Discovery Charter School held its eighth Annual Meeting on July 20, 2018, at 8:00 a.m. at
16 Lake View Park, Rochester, New York, 14613

Trustees Present: Scott Adair; Sarah Etsler; Leslie Berkowitz; Donna Dedee Doyle; Robert
Stiles; Sara Varhus; Lisa Lewis

Also Present: Steven Polowitz, Attorney; Joe Saia, School Director
1. Call to Order

Sara Varhus called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. and it was determined that a lawful quorum
was present.

2. Proof of Public Notice of Meeting
Public Notice was provided in the Messenger Post and posted at the school.
3. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting

A motion to approve the minutes of the July 20, 2017 meeting was made by L. Berkowitz,
seconded by S. Adair and unanimously approved.

4. Presentation and Acceptance of prior year Audit Report

The Fiscal Year End June 30, 2018 report from Mengel Metzger Barr & Co was presented. A
motion to accept the report was made by D. Dedee, seconded by L. Lewis and unanimously
approved.

5. Trustee Elections

The following slate of individuals was presented to serve as trustee with terms ending July 2019:

Donna Dedee Doyle, At-Large Trustee (continuing)
Sarah Etsler, At-Large Trustee (continuing)



Robert Stiles, At-Large Trustee (continuing)

The Chair asked for other nominations. There were none.

A motion to elect the slate as presented was made by S. Adair, seconded by S. Etsler, and
unanimously approved.

6. Board Officer Elections

The following slate of individuals was presented to serve as officers of the board until the next
annual meeting, to be held July 2017:

Sara Varhus, Chairperson
Donna Dedee Vice Chairperson
Robert Stiles, Secretary

Scott Adair, Treasurer

The Chair asked for other nominations. There were none. A motion to elect the slate presented
was made by L.Berkowitz, seconded by L. Lewis, and unanimously approved.

7. Other/New Business

The Chair asked if there was any other or new business that should be considered at the Annual
Meeting. There was none.

8. Adjournment

A motion to adjourn the meeting was made by D. Dedee Doyle, seconded by S. Adair, and
unanimously approved at 8:20 a.m.



DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MEETING MINUTES
July 20th, 2018; 8:00-9:30 am
16 Lake View Park, Rochester, NY 14613

Trustees Present: S. Adair (Treasurer), L. Berkowitz (Secretary), D. Dedee-Doyle, S. Etsler, L. Lewis, R. Stiles (Vice
Chairperson) and S. Varhus (Chairperson)

Trustees Excused: Y. Blackman, Family Representative (resigned June 2018 to take effect July 2018)

Also Present: S. Polowitz (Attorney) attended remotely; J. Saia (School Director)

1. Call to Order
a. The Chair called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. and it was determined that a lawful quorum
of seven was present.

2. Proof of Public Notice of Meeting

a. Public Notice was provided in the Messenger Post.
3. Conflict of Interest Reminder
a. The Chairperson read the following statement: “The Chair reminds everyone that if a
potential conflict of interest exists concerning a subject under discussion by the Board that
you have an obligation to disclose the potential conflict and, if deemed a conflict, recuse
yourself and leave the room during any discussion and vote on the subject.”

4. Consent Agenda: Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting (5.18.18), Approval of Minutes of Previous
Special Meeting (6.1.18), Approval of Minutes of Previous Special Meeting (6.29.18), Resolution #304
(Non-Routine checks over $5000 for May), Resolution #309 (Non-Routine checks over $5000 for June)
and Approval of Minutes of Executive Committee (6.21.18)

a. Moved by S. Etsler, seconded by S. Adair, and unanimously approved.
5. Committee Reports
a. Audit & Finance Committee: Financial Statements, Key Financial indicators, and Check
Detail Report
i.  Unaudited June Profit and Loss Statement indicates a $227,471 operating deficit for 2017-18
($123,077 less deficit than budgeted)
ii. Financial Indicators for 2017-18: 1.) Current Ratio- 1.85 (Low Risk) 2.) Unrestricted Days
Cash on Hand- 47 (Low Risk) 3.) Enrollment Variance- 99% (Low Risk) 4.) Total Margin- -
4.94% (Moderate Risk) 5.) Debt to Assets- .46 (Low Risk)
6. Routine Operations Updates
a. 2017-2018 Enrollment Report Update
b. Grant Status Report
7. Director’s Update
a. Monthly Operations and Program Report
i.  School Director Highlighted: 1) The school met internal chronic attendance reduction goal for
2017-18. 2) The school met the internal suspension reduction goal for 2017-18
b. New Partnership: East High Vision Care Program

8. Hiring Recommendation (Action Required, Resolution #308)

a. Resolution #308, to make an employment offer to L. Massenzio (Speech Language Pathologist),
was moved by S. Adair, seconded by L. Berkowitz, and unanimously approved.

9. Hiring Recommendation (Action Required, Resolution #310)



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

a. Resolution #310, to make employment offer to R. Nilsson (Social Emotional Learning Specialist),
R. Gause (Physical Education Teaching Assistant) and R. Eckert (Teacher of English to Speakers of
Other Languages), was moved by D. Dedee-Doyle, seconded by L. Lewis and unanimously
approved.
2018-19 First Student Bus Agreement (Action Required, Resolution #305)
a.  Resolution #3005, to continue to contract for transportation services in August and late June,
was moved by L. Lewis, seconded by S. Adair, and unanimously approved.
2018-19 ESN Van and Bus Use Agreements (Action Required, Resolutions #3006 & #307)
a. Sarah Etsler recused herself from this deliberation and vote because of a conflict of interest.
b. Resolutions #306 & #307, to continue to contract for periodic transportation services, was
moved by R. Stiles seconded by D. Dedee-Doyle and unanimously approved.
Policy — 1200 Code of Ethics Update (Action Required)

a. Moved by S. Adair, seconded by L.Berkowitz, and unanimously approved.
2018-19 Family Handbook (Action Required)

a. Moved by D. Dedee-Doyle, seconded by L. Lewis, and unanimously approved.
2018-19 Staff Handbook (Action Required)

a. Moved by L. Berkowitz, seconded by D. Dedee-Doyle, and unanimously approved.
2018-19 Emergency Response Plan/SAVE Plan (Action Required)

a. Moved by S. Adair, seconded by R. Stiles, and unanimously approved.
2017-18 Board Self-Evaluation Update

a. The results of the 2017-18 board survey were briefly reviewed and strategic areas for improvement
were identified (e.g. improving trustee orientation and training)
DCS Local Wellness Policy (Action Required)

a. Moved by D. Dedee-Doyle, seconded by R. Stiles, and unanimously approved.
Annual Report (Action Required, Resolution #311)

a. Resolution #311, to provide a contingency for submission if a quorum is not reached at the
7.27 Special Meeting, was moved by L. Lewis, seconded by L. Berkowitz, and unanimously
approved.

Charter Renewal Application (Action Required, Resolution #312)

a. Resolution #312, to provide a contingency for submission if a quorum is not reached at the
7.27 Special Meeting, was moved by S. Adair, seconded by R. Stiles, and unanimously
approved.

2018-19 Committee Membership (Action Required, Resolution #313)
a. Resolution #313, to provide for board committee membership for the 2018-19 school year,
was moved by L. Lewis, seconded by S. Etsler, and unanimously approved.
Old Business
a. Final 2017-18 Charter School Office Check-In Site-Visit Report
New Business
a. Moved: to direct the Chair to send thank you notes to Yoshida Blackman and Shanna Jamanis for
their service on the DCS Board of Trustees. Moved by S. ETsler, seconded by S. Adair, approved
unanimously.

Motion to Adjourn (Action Required) Moved by S. Adair, seconded by S. Etsler, approved unanimously .

Next Meeting: Friday July 27, 2018; 8:00-9:30 A.M. (Special Meeting- Renewal & Annual Report)



Future Agenda Items: Fund Balance Policy or Guidelines, Review School Director’s Performance and Compensation, 2018-19 Annual
Organizational Goals, Revisit Policy #1100, Consider Section 13 of School Director Evaluation for Bylaws




DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD OF TRUSTEES
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
July 27 2018; 8:00-9:30 am
16 Lake View Park, Rochester, NY 14613

Trustees Present: S. Adair (Treasurer), S. Etsler, L. Lewis, Leslie Berkowitz (via telephone), Donna Dedee
Doyle (via Skype), and S. Varhus (Chairperson)

Trustees Excused: R. Stiles

Also Present: S. Polowitz (Attorney) attended remotely and J. Saia (School Director)

1. Call to Order
a. The Chair called the meeting to order at 8:05 a.m. and it was determined that a lawful quorum
was present.

2. Proof of Public Notice of Special Meeting: Board Business-Review Multi-year Budget
Forecast.

a. Public Notice was provided in the Messenger Post.
3. Conlflict of Interest Reminder
a. The Chairperson read the following statement: “The Chair reminds everyone that if a
potential conflict of interest exists concerning a subject under discussion by the Board that
you have an obligation to disclose the potential conflict and, if deemed a conflict, recuse
yourself and leave the room during any discussion and vote on the subject.”

4. Approval of Charter Revision (Resolution #314). Joe Saia provided the rationale for the request for a
non-material charter revision, to change the school’s schedule from 200 days of instruction annually
to a minimum of 1100 hours of instruction annually. After discussion, S. Etsler moved and S. Adair
seconded the motion, which was approved unanimously. Prior to implementing this change, the
board will have an opportunity to review the new calendar.

5. Multi-year Budget Projection Scott Adair moved, and Lisa Lewis seconded, a motion to refer the
forthcoming Multiyear Budget Projection, 2016-2022, to the Executive Committee for approval prior
to the submission of the Charter Renewal Application; at the August 17 meeting the full board will
vote on the resolution approving the Multi-year Budget. The motion passed unanimously.

6. Approval of Charter Renewal Application (Reso/ution #315) L. Lewis moved and S. Adair seconded
approval of Resolution #315, endorsing the DCS Application for Charter Renewal. The motion
passed unanimously.

7. Approval of Annual Report (Reso/ution #316) S. Etsler moved and D. Dedee Doyle moved the
Resolution # 316, approving the Annual Report. The motion was approved unanimously.

8. Motion to Adjourn

a. Motion to approve adjournment of the meeting was made by S. Adair at 9:00 a.m., seconded
by S. Etsler and unanimously approved.



DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MEETING MINUTES
August 17, 2018; 8:00-9:30 am
16 Lake View Park, Rochester, NY 14613

Trustees Present: S. Adair (Treasurer), S. Etsler, L. Lewis, S. Varhus (Chairperson), and Robert Stiles (Secretary--
attended via telephone, not part of quorum for voting purposes).

Trustees Excused: Donna Dedee Doyle, (Vice Chairperson), Leslie Berkowitz

Also Present: S. Polowitz (Attorney) attended remotely.

1. Call to Order

a. The Chair called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. and it was determined that a lawful quorum
of four was present.

2. Proof of Public Notice of Meeting

a. Public Notice was provided in the Messenger Post.

3. Conflict of Interest Reminder

a. The Chairperson read the following statement: ““The Chair reminds everyone that, if a
potential conflict of interest exists concerning a subject under discussion by the Board, you
have an obligation to disclose the potential conflict and, if deemed a conflict, recuse yourself
and leave the room during any discussion and vote on the subject.”

4. Consent Agenda: Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting (7.20.18), Approval of Minutes of Previous
Special Meeting (7.27.18), Resolution #317 (Non-Routine checks over $5000 for July), and Approval of
Minutes of Executive Committee (7.24.18, 7.30.18, and 8.10.18): Scott Adair moved and Sarah Etsler
seconded a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, which was approved unanimously.

5. Committee Reports

a. Audit & Finance Committee: Financial Statements, Key Financial indicators, and Check
Detail Report: Committee Chair Adair reported that, given that the budget year has just begun, there
is little to note or discuss at this time.

b. Governance Committee: L. Lewis moved Resolution #323, electing Christian Wilkins to the Board of
Trustees of Discovery Charter School, pending approval of his candidacy by NYSED. S. Adair
seconded the motion, which was approved unanimously.

6. Routine Operations Updates

a. 2017-2018 Enrollment Report Update: Sara Varhus noted that the enrollment of 283 to date was
consistent with the enrollment plan.

b. Grant Status Report: No report.

7. Director’s Update

a. Monthly Operations and Program Report: The School Director’s report was shared with the board
prior to the meeting. Sara Varhus drew the trustees’ attention to an issue that had arisen with the
RCSD Transportation Services. On July 24, the School director was informed that, due to a driver
shortage, RCSD would not be able to provide separate buses for DCS children for an 8:00 start time
(requiring the DCS children to ride with Young Women’s College Prep students.) A compromise was
reached to alter the DCS day to begin at 9:00 and end at 4:15 to allow for a separation of the older and
younger students on the buses. The School Director will monitor the impact of this change in

schedule on student learning, parents, and staff.



10.

11.

12.
13.

Confirm Actions of Executive Committee
a. Hiring Recommendations (Resolution #318 and #319), were moved by S. Etsler, seconded by
Lisa Lewis, and unanimously approved.
b. Increase in EL contract (Resolution #320) was moved by S. Adair, seconded by Sarah Etsler
and unanimously approved.
c. Approve five-year budget (2016-2020) (Resolution #321) was moved by S. Adair, seconded by
S. Etsler, and unanimously approved.
2018-19 Board Meeting Schedule: This was presented by Sara Varhus, moved by L. Lewis, seconded by S.
Adair, and approved unanimously.
EnCompass-DCS Services Agreement (Resolution #322): Sara Varhus noted that the ESN Services
Agreement indicates how these programs will be assessed. L. Lewis moved that Resolution #322 be approved,
S. Adair seconded, and the resolution was approved unanimously. Sarah Etsler recused herself and was not
present for the vote on this resolution.
Old Business: Board Action Items: The Chair shared a list of action items that were identified in the board’s
earlier discussion of the findings of the board self-evaluation, each of which has been assigned to a board
committee. She will propose a timeline for completion of these items at the September board meeting.
New Business: There was no new business.
Adjournment at 8:45: Moved by S. Adair, seconded by S. Etsler, approved unanimously .



DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MEETING MINUTES
September 21, 2018; 8:00-9:30 am
16 Lake View Park, Rochester, NY 14613

Trustees Present: S. Adair (Treasurer), Leslie Berkowitz, Donna Dedee-Doyle (Vice Chairperson), S. Etsler, and S.
Varhus (Chairperson)

Trustees Excused: L. Lewis and Robert Stiles (Secretary)

Also Present: J. Saia (School Director), S. Polowitz (Attorney) attended remotely via conference call and C. Wilkens
attended as a potential future board member

1. Call to Order

a. The Chair called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. and it was determined that a lawful quorum
of five was present.

2. Proof of Public Notice of Meeting

a. Public Notice was provided in the Messenger Post and posted at the school

3. Contflict of Interest Reminder

a. 'The Chairperson read the following statement: “The Chair reminds everyone that, if a
potential conflict of interest exists concerning a subject under discussion by the Board, you
have an obligation to disclose the potential conflict and, if deemed a conflict, recuse yourself
and leave the room during any discussion and vote on the subject.”

4. Consent Agenda: Approval of Draft Minutes of Previous Meeting (8.17.18) and Resolution #324 (Non-
Routine checks over $5000 for August) D. Dedee-Doyle moved and L. Berkowitz seconded a motion to
approve the Consent Agenda, which was approved unanimously.

5. Committee Reports

a. Audit & Finance Committee: Financial Statements, Key Financial indicators, and Check
Detail Report: Committee Chair S. Adair reported that income and expenditures and financial
indicators are as projected. He shared a draft guideline for the future use of the fund balance, which
will be discussed further at the October 19 meeting. He reported that the 2018 audit has been
completed with no findings—i.e., a clean audit.

b. Governance Committee: On behalf of the Governance Committee, S. Varhus reported that
committee members will be meeting with Tamika Jackson, who has been nominated to serve as the
parent representative on the Board of Trustees.

c. Personnel Committee: Committee Chair S. Etsler communicated minor changes have been made to
three job descriptions.

d. Executive Committee Report: S. Varhus reported that the Executive Committee has not met since
the last regular meeting of the board.

6. Routine Operations Updates

a. 2017-2018 Enrollment Report Update: School Director J. Saia highlighted the current full-
enrollment, after offers made for three students who enrolled but never attended in August

b. Grant Status Report: School Director J. Saia highlighted the deposit of the SUNY Stimulus Funds
grant money for work done over the summer

7. Director’s Update

a. Monthly Operations and Program Report: School Director J. Saia highlighted- 1.) 91% attendance
in August even after transportation office mismanagement 2.) NYS 4t Grade Science Test score



10.
11.
12.
13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.
19.

review 3.) DCS has enrolled 15 ELL students for 2018-19 (5.4%) 4.) EnCompass for Learning 2017-18
final report of outcomes reviewed and exciting increases in programming discussed
b. Draft 2018-19 School Improvement Strategic Plan: Plan briefly discussed for use at the October
19t meeting
Policy #1100: Board Evaluation Policy L. Berkowitz moved, and seconded by S. Etsler, a motion to approve
Resolution #325, which was approved unanimously.
Policy #1600: Policy on Review of Policies D. Dedee-Doyle moved and L. Berkowitz seconded a motion to
approve Resolution #3206, which was approved unanimously. The School Director was directed to include an
annual distribution of all policies to trustees in organization’s annual calendar in July.
October 19, 2018 Board Planning Meeting and Process A brief discussion was held about questions which
need to be asked and answered as part of the anticipated board planning meeting
Draft Committee Assignments: 2018-19 Board Actions agreed to by Committee Chairs/ Committees
Renewal Charter School Office Site Visit: Pre-Visit Materials Review
Renewal Charter School Office Site Visit: Trustee Planning and Preparation A brief discussion was held
to prepare trustees for the upcoming focus group.
Breakthrough Leadership Charter Board Capacity Building Project Update (Rochester-Area Project
Sponsored by The Farash Foundation) The status on board Chairperson and School Director interviews
shared
Continue 2017-18 School Director Evaluation Process The revised policy and process were highlighted and
input encouraged from all trustees for Chairperson’s use
2017-18 Staff Bonus Decision Postponed until the public release of date or 9.28.18 for an Executive
Committee decision.
0O1d Business: there was no old business to address.
New Business: There was no new business to address.
Adjournment at 9:27: Moved by S. Etsler, seconded by S. Adare, approved unanimously.

Nexct Meeting: Friday October 19, 2018, 8:00-9:30 A.M.

Future Agenda Items: Review School Director’s Performance and Compensation, Consider Section 13 of School Director Evaluation for

Bylaws, Board Committee Action ltems



DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MEETING MINUTES
October 19, 2018; 8:00-9:30 am
16 Lake View Park, Rochester, NY 14613

Trustees Present: S. Adair (Treasurer), Donna Dedee-Doyle (Vice Chairperson), S. Etsler, L. Lewis, Robert
Stiles (Secretary) and S. Varhus (Chairperson)

Trustees Excused: Leslie Berkowitz (audited via audio call in)

Also Present: J. Saia (School Director), S. Polowitz (Attorney) attended remotely via conference call and C.
Wilkens attended as a potential future board member via video & audio remote access

1. Call to Order

a. 'The Chair called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. and it was determined that a lawful quorum
of six was present.

2. Proof of Public Notice of Meeting

a. Public Notice was provided in the Messenger Post and posted at the school

3. Conflict of Interest Reminder

a. The Chairperson read the following statement: “The Chair reminds everyone that, if a
potential conflict of interest exists concerning a subject under discussion by the Board, you
have an obligation to disclose the potential conflict and, if deemed a conflict, recuse yourself
and leave the room during any discussion and vote on the subject.”

4. Consent Agenda: Approval of Draft Minutes of Previous Meeting (9.21.18) and Resolution
#327 (Non-Routine checks over $5000 for September) S. Etsler moved and S. Adair seconded a
motion to approve the Consent Agenda, which was approved unanimously.

5. Committee Reports

a. Audit & Finance Committee: Financial Statements, Key Financial indicators, and
Check Detail Report: Committee Chair S. Adair reported that income and expenditures and
financial indicators are as projected.

b. Governance Committee: On behalf of the Governance Committee, R. Stiles reported that T.
Jackson, a potential parent representative on the Board of Trustees, is undergoing a
background check and completing required paperwork. Conversations with other potential
board members, K. Hines and J. Kathy, continue.

i. S. Adair moved and L. Lewis seconded a motion to approve Resolution #331
(proposing C. Wilkens as a new candidate for approval), which was approved
unanimously.

c. Personnel Committee: No report this month.

d. Executive Committee Report: No report this month.

6. Routine Operations Updates

a. 2017-2018 Enrollment Report Update: School Director J. Saia highlighted the current full-
enrollment.

b. Grant Status Report: No report this month.

7. Director’s Update



a. Monthly Operations and Program Report: School Director J. Saia highlighted- 1.) Six of
seven grades (and the entire school) met goal of no less than 97% attendance for September
2.) Brief review of math benchmark correlation charts for 2017-18 3.) 2018-19 Staff
Demographic Survey indicates 28% of staff identify as an ethnic minority (94% of students)
4.) 2018-19 Staff Wellness Survey indicates 85% job satisfaction (up from 53% 2015-16)

8. Audit Report Approval: S. Adair moved and R. Stiles seconded a motion to approve Resolution
#328 (proposing 2017-18 audit report approval), which was approved unanimously.

9. 2017-18 NYS ELA & Math Results Review: School Director reviewed the twelve Benchmark 1
tables and Charter School Office comparison schools results

10. Discussion to Search for Consultant

a. L. Lewis moved and S. Adair seconded a motion to allow the DCS Executive Committee
engage a consultant to assist with the creation and implementation of a school improvement
plan, which was approved unanimously.

11. 2017-18 Staff Bonus: S. Adair moved and S. Etsler seconded a motion to approve Resolution #329
(deciding against the payment of the potential 2017-18 staff bonus), which was approved
unanimously.

12. Old Business: There was no old business to address.

13. New Business: There was no new business to address.

14. Adjournment at 9:27: Moved by L. Lewis, seconded by S. Etsler, approved unanimously.

Nexct Meeting: Friday November 16, 2018, 8:00-9:30 A.M.

Future Agenda Items: Review School Director’s Performance and Compensation, Consider Section 13 of School Director
Evaluation for Bylaws, Board Committee Action Items




DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MEETING MINUTES
November 16, 2018; 8:00-9:30 am
16 Lake View Park, Rochester, NY 14613

Trustees Present: S. Adair (Treasurer), Donna Dedee-Doyle (Vice Chairperson), S. Etsler, L. Lewis, C.
Wilkens and Robert Stiles (Secretary)

Trustees Excused: S. Varhus (Chairperson) audited via audio call in

Also Present: J. Saia (School Director), S. Polowitz (Attorney) and A. Aberman (The Learning Collective
Consultant)

1. Call to Order
a. The Vice Chairperson called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. and it was determined that a
lawful quorum of six was present.

2. Proof of Public Notice of Meeting

a. Public Notice was provided in the Messenger Post and posted at the school
3. Conflict of Interest Reminder
a. The Chairperson read the following statement: ““The Chair reminds everyone that, if a
potential conflict of interest exists concerning a subject under discussion by the Board, you
have an obligation to disclose the potential conflict and, if deemed a conflict, recuse yourself
and leave the room during any discussion and vote on the subject.”

4. Consent Agenda: Approval of Draft Minutes of Previous Meeting (10.19.18), Draft Minutes of
the Previous Executive Committee Meeting (10.30.18) and Resolution #332 (Non-Routine
checks over $5000 for October) S. Adair moved and S. Etsler seconded a motion to approve the
Consent Agenda, which was approved unanimously.

5. Committee Reports

a. Audit & Finance Committee: Financial Statements, Key Financial indicators, and
Check Detail Report: |. Saia reported that income and expenditures and financial indicators
are as projected, with a single financial indicator moving into the moderate risk category. Two
questions from the committee were addressed with the entire board (i.e. timing of
transportation expenses and deferred per pupil revenue).

b. Governance Committee: On behalf of the Governance Committee, R. Stiles reported that
K. Hines, a potential representative on the Board of Trustees, communicated that he is not
currently able to dedicate the time necessary to sit on the DCS board. A potential family
representative is currently in the clearance process. Conversations with another potential
board member, J. Kathy, continue.

c. Personnel Committee: No report this month.

d. Executive Committee Report: No report this month.

6. Routine Operations Updates

a. 2017-2018 Enrollment Report Update: School Director J. Saia highlighted the current full-
enrollment.

b. Grant Status Report: No updates this month.



7.

10.

11.
12.
13.

Director’s Update
a. Monthly Operations and Program Report: School Director J. Saia highlighted- 1.) The
school has exceeded its attendance goal for two months in a row (97%) 2.) Switching
Community Circle to the afternoon appears to have encouraged increased family attendance
October average of 40) 3.) The DCS Family Association has asked to increase meeting length
time and return to a monthly scheduled meeting 4.) A new partnership has begun with
Guiding Eyes for the Blind 5.) 2018-19 Family Survey results were outstanding (i.e. 80% of
students represented, 98% approval rating, lowest score for “DCS lets me know about
community resources and opportunities”- 87%)
The Learning Collective- Educational Consultant: Resolution #333 (TLC Consultant Services
Contract) was moved by S. Adair, seconded by R. Stiles, and was approved unanimously.
Potential Submission of a Three-Year School Improvement Plan by the Executive
Committee: A motion to authorize the executive committee to approve a school improvement plan
if submission is required prior to the next meeting of the entire board of trustees was moved by R.
Stiles, seconded by L. Lewis, and was approved unanimously.
Board Executive Session
a. 2017-18 School Director Evaluation and 2018-18 School Director Compensation
b. Additional Business
Old Business: There was no old business to address.
New Business: There was no new business to address.
Adjournment at 9:00: Moved by L. Lewis, seconded by S. Etsler, approved unanimously.

Nexct Meeting: Thursday December 6, 2018; 6:00-7:30 P.M.

Future Agenda Items: 2018-19 Budget Revision, Review Y8Q1 Academic Data, Consider Section 13 of School Director

Evalnation for Bylaws, Family Handbook Update (Clarify instruction for suspended students), Contracts (Food Service,
Accounting & Common Application] Website)



DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MEETING MINUTES
December 6, 2018; 6:30- 8:00
300 Paddy Creek Circle, Rochester, NY 14613

Trustees Present: S. Adair (Treasurer), Donna Dedee-Doyle (Vice Chairperson), S. Etsler, L.
Lewis, and S. Varhus (Chairperson), C. Wilkens

Trustees Excused: R. Stiles (secretary)

Also Present: J. Saia (School Director), S. Polowitz (Attorney) attended remotely via conference call
and C. Wilkens attended as a potential future board member via video & audio remote access

1. Call to Order
a. 'The Chair called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. and it was determined that a lawful
quorum of six was present.

2. Proof of Public Notice of Meeting

a. Public Notice was provided in the Messenger Post and posted at the school
3. Conflict of Interest Reminder
a. The Chairperson read the following statement: “The Chair reminds everyone that, if
a potential conflict of interest exists concerning a subject under discussion by the
Board, you have an obligation to disclose the potential conflict and, if deemed a
conflict, recuse yourself and leave the room during any discussion and vote on the
subject.”

4. Consent Agenda: Approval of Draft Minutes of Previous Meeting (11.16.18) and
Resolution #334 (Non-Routine checks over $5000 for November) D. Dedee moved
and S. Adair seconded a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, which was approved
unanimously.

5. Committee Reports

a. Audit & Finance Committee: Financial Statements, Key Financial indicators,
and Check Detail Report: Committee Chair S. Adair reported that the committee
will meet next week and provide a cumulative report on financial matters at the
January meeting.

b. Governance Committee: No report this month.

c. Personnel Committee: No report this month.

d. Executive Committee Report: No report this month.

6. Routine Operations Updates

a. 2017-2018 Enrollment Report Update: School Director J. Saia reported that
enrollment is currently at 276.

b. Grant Status Report: J. Saia reported that DCS has received $5000 from the Farash
Foundation to support board development.

7. Director’s Update



10.

11.
12.

13.
14.

15.

a. Monthly Operations and Program Report: J. Saia reported that we have currently
exceeded our attendance goal.

The Learning Collective, Three-year School Improvement Plan (Resolution #335):
After discussion the board deferred action on this resolution in order to provide more time
to design the implementation of the plan.
Year Eight, Quarter One Snapshot: Full discussion of Quarter one data was deferred to
the January meeting of the board.
Food Service Agreement: Resolution #336 was moved by D. Dedee, seconded by S.
Adair, and approved unanimously.
Accounting Services Agreement:
O1d Business: The following motion was moved by S. Adair, seconded by S. Etsler, and
unanimously approved: “That the School Director’s salary continue to be $137,196 for the
period beginning July 1, 2018, and ending June 30, 2019.
New Business: There was no new business.
Executive Session: S. Etsler moved and S. Adair seconded a motion to move into
Executive Session to discuss a confidential personnel matter; the motion was approved
unanimously. The motion to move out of Executive Session was made by C. Wilkens,
seconded by S. Adair, and approved unanimously.
Adjournment at 8:00: Moved by L. Lewis, seconded by S. Etsler, approved unanimously.

Next Meeting: Friday Janunary 18, 2018; 8:00-9:30 A.M.

Future Agenda Items: Review School Director’s Performance and Compensation, Consider Section 13 of School

Director Evaluation for Bylaws, Board Committee Action Items



DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD OF TRUSTEES
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
December 20™, 2018; 8:00-9:30 am
16 Lake View Park, Rochester, NY 14613

Trustees Present: S. Adair (Treasurer), Donna Dedee Doyle (Vice Chair), S. Etsler, C. Wilkens,
and S. Varhus (Chair)

Trustees Excused: L. Lewis

Also Present: S. Polowitz (Attorney)

1. Call to Order
a. 'The Chair called the meeting to order at 8:05 a.m. and it was determined that a lawful
quorum was present.
2. Proof of Public Notice of Special Meeting
a. Public Notice was provided in the Messenger Post and posted at the school.
3. Conflict of Interest Reminder
a. The Chairperson read the following statement: “The Chair reminds everyone that if a
potential conflict of interest exists concerning a subject under discussion by the
Board that you have an obligation to disclose the potential conflict and, if deemed a
conflict, recuse yourself and leave the room during any discussion and vote on the
subject.”
4. Urgent DCS Academic Improvement Plan

a. The board reviewed and discussed implementation of the Urgent DCS Academic
Improvement Plan, prepared by consultant Adam Aberman of The Learning Collective.
Resolution #335, approving the three-year academic improvement plan, was moved by D.
Dedee, seconded by S. Etsler, and approved unanimously.

b. Itwas the recommendation of the board that Dr. Concetta Lucchese be hired as Director of
Academic Improvement to lead the academic aspects of the plan. The Chair will bring a

formal resolution to this effect, for formal approval, at the next regular meeting of the

board.

5. Motion to Adjourn
a. Motion to approve adjournment of the meeting was made by S. Adair at 9:55 a.m.,
seconded by S. Etsler and unanimously approved.



DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MEETING MINUTES
January 18, 2019; 8:00-9:30 A.M.
16 Lake View Park, Rochester, NY 14613

Trustees Present: D. Dedee-Doyle (Vice Chairperson), S. Etsler, L. Lewis, S. Varhus (Chairperson,
attended via videoconference) and C. Wilkens

Trustees Excused: R. Stiles (Secretary) and S. Adair (Treasurer) participated via a call-in number
but did not vote and were not counted toward quorum

Also Present: |. Saia (School Director) and S. Polowitz (Attorney, participated via a call-in number)

1. Call to Order

a. 'The Chair called the meeting to order at 8:10 a.m. and it was determined that a lawful
quorum of five was present.

2. Proof of Public Notice of Meeting

a. Public Notice was provided in the Messenger Post and posted at the school

3. Conflict of Interest Reminder

a. The Chairperson read the following statement: “The Chair reminds everyone that, if
a potential conflict of interest exists concerning a subject under discussion by the
Board, you have an obligation to disclose the potential conflict and, if deemed a
conflict, recuse yourself and leave the room during any discussion and vote on the
subject.”

4. Consent Agenda: Approval of Minutes from Previous Meeting (12.6.18), Approval of
Minutes from Previous Special Meeting (12.20.18), Approval of Minutes from
Previous Executive Committee Meeting (12.20.18) and Resolution #342 (Non-
Routine checks over $5000 for December) S. Etsler moved and C. Wilkens seconded a
motion to approve the Consent Agenda, which was approved unanimously.

5. Committee Reports

a. Academic Excellence Committee Update: Summary of the committee’s
membership, charge and goals provided.

b. Audit & Finance Committee: Financial Statements, Key Financial indicators,
Check Detail Report and 2018-19 Budget Revision: Committee Chair S. Adair
reported on the highlights from the documents the committee reviewed and
distributed to all trustees. The 2018-19 budget revision was presented with the
acknowledgment that the slight increase in the deficit aligns with the strategic
addition of a Director of Academic Improvement to take the lead on the Urgent
Academic Improvement Plan.

c. Governance Committee: Committee Chair R. Stiles highlighted efforts to recruit a
potential new trustee. A brief discussion was also held addressing the potential
recruitment of effective and motivated trustees leaving other charter school boards.



d. Personnel Committee: Committee Chair S. Etsler highlighted the new job
description for “Director of Academic Improvement” and the potential to streamline
the job description process in the future.

e. Executive Committee Report: S. Etsler moved and I.. Lewis seconded Resolution
#341 to approve the proposal of a new trustee Tamika Jackson to the Charter
School Office, which was approved unanimously.

6. Routine Operations Updates

a. 2017-2018 Enrollment Report Update: School Director J. Saia reported that the
school continues with full enrollment to align with the Discovery Charter School
budget plus waiting lists. Enrollment is currently at 280 of a 280-student maximum.

b. Grant Status Report: No update this month.

7. Director’s Update

a. Monthly Operations and Program Report: J. Saia reported on the status of
attendance, chronic attendance, suspensions, VADIR, and family involvement
measures. All trending towards goals, although school-wide attendance has dipped
to 95% vs. the 96% goal for the year.

8. Hiring Proposal: C. Wilkens moved and L. Lewis seconded a motion to approve
Resolution # 338, to hire Ms. Concetta Lucchese, which was approved unanimously- with
S. Etsler recusing herself.

9. Discovery Charter School Organization Chart Revision: S. Etsler moved and L. Lewis
seconded a motion to approve Resolution #343, revising the Discovery Charter School
Organization Chart (adding the “Director of Academic Improvement”), which was
approved unanimously.

10. Creation of an Ad Hoc Committee on Academic Excellence: C. Wilkens moved and S.
Etsler seconded a motion to approve Resolution #340, creating an Academic Excellence
Committee to support the Urgent Academic Improvement Plan, which was approved
unanimously.

11. The Learning Collective, February School Review and Consultation Services: L. Lewis
moved and C. Wilkens seconded a motion to approve Resolution # 339, to continue the
relationship between Discovery Charter School and The Learning Collective with the goal of
accelerating academic progress at the school, which was approved unanimously.

12. Lease Notice of Intent: I.. Lewis moved and S. Varhus seconded a motion to approve
Resolution #344, to submit a notice of intent as required by the lease, which was approved
unanimously- with S. Etsler recusing herself.

13. Old Business: There was no old business.

14. New Business: There was no new business.

15. Adjournment at 9:10: S. Varhus moved and L. Lewis seconded a motion to adjourn, which

was approved unanimously.

Next Meeting: Friday February 157, 2019; 8:00-9:30 A.M.



Future Agenda Items: Consider Section 13 of School Director Evaluation for Bylaws




DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MEETING MINUTES
February 15, 2019; 8:00-9:30 A.M.
16 Lake View Park, Rochester, NY 14613

Trustees Present: D. DedeeDoyle (Vice Chairperson), S. Etsler, L. Lewis, S. Varhus (Chairperson,
attended via videoconference) and R. Stiles (Secretary)

Trustees Excused: C. Wilkens participated via a call-in number but did not vote and was not
counted toward quorum. S. Adair (Treasurer) was excused for other professional commitments.

Also Present: C. Lucchese (Director of Academic Improvement), J. Saia (School Director), T.
Jackson (Potential Family Representative) and S. Polowitz (Attorney, participated via a call-in
number)

1. Call to Order

a. After technical difficulties were adequately resolved, the Chair called the meeting to
order at 8:12 a.m. and it was determined that a lawful quorum of five was present.

2. Proof of Public Notice of Meeting

a. Public Notice was provided in the Messenger Post and posted at the school

3. Conflict of Interest Reminder

a. The Chairperson read the following statement: “The Chair reminds everyone that, if
a potential conflict of interest exists concerning a subject under discussion by the
Board, you have an obligation to disclose the potential conflict and, if deemed a
conflict, recuse yourself and leave the room during any discussion and vote on the
subject.”

4. Consent Agenda: Approval of Minutes from Previous Meeting (1.18.19), Approval of
Minutes from Previous Executive Committee Meeting (2.5.19) and Resolution #345
(Non-Routine checks over $5000 for December) B. Stiles moved and L. Lewis seconded
a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, which was approved unanimously.

5. Committee Reports

a. Academic Excellence Committee Update: Summary of the committee’s February
meeting shared (e.g. Strategic monthly academic progress spreadsheet reviewed).

b. Audit & Finance Committee: Financial Statements, Key Financial indicators,
Check Detail Report and 2018-19 Budget Revision: Committee Chair S. Adair
provided a written recap of the highlights from the documents the committee
reviewed and distributed to all trustees. The School Director highlighted a few
additional items from the meeting (e.g. student enrollment turn-over is lower than
the average of the previous three years and has not had a negative impact on
anticipated revenue).

c. Governance Committee: Committee Chair R. Stiles reviewed current recruitment
efforts for potential new trustees and the anticipated on-boarding/training of the
new Family Representative.



d. Personnel Committee: Committee Chair S. Etsler highlighted anticipated efforts
this month to finalize the board’s evaluation process and goals for the second half of
the 2019-20 school year for the Director of Academic Improvement and the School
Director.

e. Executive Committee Report: S. Varhus moved and L. Lewis seconded
Resolution #346 to approve the exploratory efforts toward potential utilization of a
Charter Maintenance Organization (specifically Democracy Prep.), which was
approved unanimously. Four trustees have volunteered to visit a Democracy Prep.
school in New York City in the next month to begin the process.

6. Director of Academic Improvement Report: The majority of the meeting was dedicated
to the review of the academic progress of grades 3 though 6. A review of the completed
Learning Collective data tools was provided with explanations of the data and data collection
process, programmatic changes informed by the data, anticipated next steps and learning
goals for the next month. The School Director also provided a brief overview of the second
quarter academic progress for Kindergarten through 2™ grade.

7. School Director’s Update

a. Monthly Operations and Program Report: J. Saia highlighted the school’s
NYSED Accountability Designation for 2018-19 as a “School in Good Standing”.
Context provided: 71% of RCSD schools and two Rochester elementary charter
schools have a lower designation than DCS. 21% of RCSD schools are now in
receivership (generally with populations which mirror DCS).

b. The Learning Collective’s February Visit Schedule

c. DCS English Language Arts “Independence” Instructional Resource and
Professional Development

d. 2018-19 Monthly Enrollment Report

e. 2018-19 Monthly Grant Status Report

8. 2018-19 School Director Report Card Results: Key results and next steps were
summatized (e.g. Even within the context of a difficult and stressful yeat, Effective/Highly
Effective ratings at 87%. Area with the greatest percentage of “Developing” designations,
has been tasked to a staff focus group to create and monitor measurable goals for the
remainder of the year and hold the School Director accountable.)

9. Board Chair Report on Academic Improvement Strategies: The Board Chair reported
on elements of Academic Improvement which were not addressed during previous agenda
items (e.g. contents of ongoing reports to the Charter School Office, securing a data
specialist to support the Academic Improvement Plan).

10. Old Business: There was no old business.

11. New Business: There was no new business.

12. Adjournment at 10:10: L. Lewis moved and S. Etsler seconded a motion to adjourn, which

was approved unanimously.

Nexct Meeting: Friday March 15", 2019; 8:00-9:30 A.M.
Future Agenda Items: Consider Section 13 of School Director Evaluation for Bylaws




DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MEETING MINUTES
March 15, 2019; 8:00-9:30 A.M.
16 Lake View Park, Rochester, NY 14613

Trustees Present: D. DedeeDoyle (Vice Chairperson), S. Etsler, C. Wilkens, S. Adair (Treasurer)
and R. Stiles (Secretary)

Trustees Excused: L. Lewis and S. Varhus

Also Present: C. Lucchese (Director of Academic Improvement), J. Saia (School Director), T.
Jackson (Potential Family Representative) and S. Polowitz (Attorney, participated via a call-in

number)

1. Call to Order

a.

After technical difficulties were adequately resolved, the Chair called the meeting to
order at 8:05 a.m. and it was determined that a lawful quorum of five was present.

2. Proof of Public Notice of Meeting

a.

Public Notice was provided in the Messenger Post and posted at the school

3. Conflict of Interest Reminder

a.

The Chairperson read the following statement: “The Chair reminds everyone that, if
a potential conflict of interest exists concerning a subject under discussion by the
Board, you have an obligation to disclose the potential conflict and, if deemed a
conflict, recuse yourself and leave the room during any discussion and vote on the

subject.”

4. Consent Agenda: Approval of Minutes from Previous Meeting (2.15.19), Approval of
Minutes from Previous Executive Committee Meeting (2.21.19) and Resolution #3438
(Non-Routine checks over $5000 for February 2019) C. Wilkins moved and S. Adair
seconded a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, which was approved unanimously.

5. Committee Reports

a.

b.

Academic Excellence Committee Update: Summary of the committee’s March
meeting reviewed and discussed with the board (e.g. Strategic monthly academic
progress spreadsheet).

Audit & Finance Committee: Financial Statements, Key Financial Indicators
and Check Detail Report- Committee Chair S. Adair provided a recap of the
highlights from the documents the committee reviewed and distributed to all
trustees. The School Director highlighted a few additional items from the meeting
(e.g. Federal IDEA and In-Kind District Textbook income on schedule; Expenses
are trending to reduce the budgeted deficit).

Governance Committee: Committee Chair R. Stiles reviewed current recruitment
efforts for potential new trustees, the orientation for T. Jackson conducted and the
anticipated on-boarding/orientation for C. Wilkens.



10.
11.

12.

d. Personnel Committee: Committee Chair S. Etsler highlighted efforts to finalize the
board’s evaluation process and goals for the second half of the 2019-20 school year
for the Director of Academic Improvement and the School Director.

e. Executive Committee Report: S. Etsler moved and C. Wilkens seconded
Resolution #347 to approve the rehiring of K. Claiborne.

Director of Academic Improvement Report: The majority of the meeting was dedicated
to a review and board discussion of the “Post-Benchmark 3 Instructional Resources”
prepared for each grade level team (e.g. Multiple-Choice Item Analysis).

a. Data Specialist Hire Update: A draft description of responsibilities for a
consultant were discussed along with a potential lead. Every effort will be made to
have an individual identified and hired prior to the next full board meeting.

School Director’s Update

a. Monthly Operations and Program Report: J. Saia highlighted the celebration that
three students with IEPs have qualified for declassification. Current Specialized
Services Summary: 12% SPED, 5% ESOL, 97% ED and 5% 504.

b. 2018-19 Monthly Enrollment Report & 2018-19 Monthly Grant Status Report:
DCS remains fully enrolled. No grant updates in March.

June Board 2019-20 Planning Meeting Date Setting: A Doodle Poll will by distributed to
trustees to secure a date in June for goal setting and organizational strategy work.
EnCompass Mid-Year Report: Trustees continue to closely monitor the results and
impact of contracted academic services.

Old Business: There was no old business.

New Business

a. 3.4.19 Charter School Office Meeting Report

b. 2019-20 School Budget draft will be created for the April board meeting

c. 2019-20 Student Lottery will be held on April 2™

d. Year 2 (2019-20) and Year 3 (2020-21) DCS Academic Plan work

Adjournment at 9:35: S. Etsler moved and S. Adair seconded a motion to adjourn, which
was approved unanimously.

Next Meeting: Friday April 26", 2019; 8:00-9:30 A.M.
Future Agenda Items: Board Evalunation, Strategic Planning,
Board Membership and 1 eadership, Consider Section 13 of
School Director Evaluation for Bylaws




DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MEETING MINUTES
April 14, 2019; 8:00-9:30 A.M.
16 Lake View Park, Rochester, NY 14613

Trustees Present: S. Varhus (Chair), D. DedeeDoyle (Vice Chairperson), S. Etsler, C. Wilkens, L.
Lewis, S. Adair (Treasurer) and R. Stiles (Secretary)

Also Present: S. Polowitz (Attorney)

1. Call to Order

a. 'The Chair called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. and it was determined that a lawful
quorum of five was present.

2. Proof of Public Notice of Meeting

a. Public Notice was provided in the Messenger Post and posted at the school

3. Conflict of Interest Reminder

a. 'The Chairperson read the following statement: “The Chair reminds everyone that, if
a potential conflict of interest exists concerning a subject under discussion by the
Board, you have an obligation to disclose the potential conflict and, if deemed a
conflict, recuse yourself and leave the room during any discussion and vote on the
subject.”

4. Consent Agenda: Approval of Minutes from Previous Meeting (3.15.19), Approval of
Minutes from Previous Executive Committee Meeting (3.20.19 and 4.3.19) and Resolution
#351 (Non-Routine checks over $5000 for March 2019) S. Adair moved and S. Etsler
seconded a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, which was approved unanimously.

5. Committee Reports

a. Academic Excellence Committee Update: Committee Chair C. Wilkens summarized
the committee’s April meeting, where is sought to clarify the school and board data
needs, and discuss the various ways to collect and analyze outcomes data.

b. Audit & Finance Committee: Financial Statements, Key Financial Indicators and
Check Detail Report- Committee Chair S. Adair provided a recap of the highlights
from the documents the committee reviewed and distributed to all trustees: Financial
Statements, Key Financial Indicators, and Check Detail Report

c. Governance Committee: Committee Chair R. Stiles reported that the committee had
discussed the importance of clarifying expectations for potential board members, and
the possibility of inviting non-trustee advisors to sit with the board as appropriate.

d. Personnel Committee: Committee Chair S. Etsler presented the revised School
Director evaluation template for approval. The motion was tabled until the next
meeting. (S. Varhus moved, D. Dedee seconded, approval was unanimous.)

e. Executive Committee Report: D. Dedee moved and R. Stiles seconded Resolution
#349 to approve the hiring of J. Silver as Data Analyst. R. Stiles moved and S. Adair



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.
16.

seconded the approval of Resolution #350 to approve the hiring of J.Haak as ELA

Coordinator and Coach.
Director of Academic Improvement Report: No report.
School Director’s Update: The written Monthly Operations and Program Update,
Enrollment Report update and Grant Status, 2018-19 Intervention Continuum of Services,
and Lottery Results were included in the meeting materials for board review.
Resolution #352, which secures accounting services by R. Blew, was moved by S. Adair,
seconded by L. Lewis, and approved unanimously.
The Board reviewed the preliminary assumptions behind the 2019-2020 budget. The board
will approve the 2019-2020 annual budget at its May 17 meeting.
S. Adair moved and L. Lewis seconded adoption of the 2019-2020 school calendar.
Approval was unanimous.
Two-year Renewal Update and Discussion: S. Varhus reported on discussion with CSO
about the two-year renewal and improvement that is necessary to achieve subsequent
renewal.
Academic Improvement Discussion. S. Etsler and S. Varhus reported on the interviews and
staff survey conducted to evaluate the perceived effectiveness of the Academic
Improvement Plan as implemented in Spring 2019 and planned for Fall/Spring 2019-2020.
Major themes that emerged in this process include the need to greater clarity in school-wide
academic goals and in expectations for classroom teachers. S. Varhus also reported on the
exploration of Democracy Prep Pubic Schools as a possible partner. Dem Prep can do
“CMO light,” an arrangement in which DCS would partner with them for acdemmic
support and improvement.
Executive Session: C. Wilkens moved and S. Etsler seconded that the boar move into
Executive Session to discuss a confidential personnel matter.
Old Business: Due to time constraints discussion and approval of Lease Agreement was
deferred to the May 17 meeting.
New Business
Adjournment at 9:40: L. Lewis moved and S. Varhus seconded a motion to adjourn, which
was approved unanimously.

Next Meeting: Friday April 26", 2019; 8:00-9:30 A.M.
Future Agenda Items: Board Evaluation, Strategic Planning,
Board Membership and 1eadership, Consider Section 13 of
School Director Evaluation for Bylaws




DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MEETING MINUTES
May 17", 2019; 8:00-9:30 A.M.
16 Lake View Park, Rochester, NY 14613

Trustees Present: S. Varhus (Chairperson), D. Dedee Doyle (Vice Chairperson), S. Etsler, C.
Wilkens, S. Adair (Treasurer) and R. Stiles (Secretary)

Trustees Excused: L. Lewis

Also Present: . Saia (School Director) and S. Polowitz (Attorney, participated via a call-in number)

1. Call to Order
a. 'The Chair called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. and it was determined that a lawful
quorum of five was present.
2. Proof of Public Notice of Meeting
a. Public Notice was provided in the Messenger Post and posted at the school
3. Conflict of Interest Reminder
a. The Chairperson read the following statement: “The Chair reminds everyone that, if
a potential conflict of interest exists concerning a subject under discussion by the
Board, you have an obligation to disclose the potential conflict and, if deemed a
conflict, recuse yourself and leave the room during any discussion and vote on the
subject.”
4. Opportunity for Public Comment
5. Consent Agenda: Approval of Minutes from Previous Meeting (4.19.19), Approval of
Minutes from Previous Executive Committee Meeting (5.9.19) and Resolution #353
(Non-Routine checks over $5000 for April 2019) S. Adair moved and R. Stiles seconded a
motion to approve the Consent Agenda, which was approved unanimously.
6. Committee Reports
a. Academic Excellence Committee: No report.
b. Audit & Finance Committee
i. Financial Statements, Key Financial Indicators and Check Detail
Report: Committee Chair S. Adair provided a recap of the highlights from
the documents the committee reviewed and distributed to all trustees.
ii. Audit Proposal: A decision was made to defer the Audit Proposal to the
June meeting.
iii. Approval of Form 990: S. Adair moved and C. Wilkins seconded a motion
to submit the Form 990, which was approved unanimously.
c. Governance Committee: No report.
d. Personnel Committee: S. Adair moved and D. Dedee Doyle seconded the approval
of the School Director Evaluation Board Personnel Evaluation, which was approved
unanimously.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.
16.

17.

e. Executive Committee Report: D. Dedee Doyle moved and S. Etsler seconded the
approval of Resolution #354- the third Discovery Charter School contract with The
Learning Collective- which was approved unanimously.

Director of Academic Improvement Report: The Director of Academic Improvement
will present summary outcomes data at the June board meeting.

School Director’s Update: The Monthly Operations and Program Report and the 2018-
19 Monthly Enrollment Report & 2018-19 Monthly Grant Status Report were available
for the review of the trustees. J.Saia reported that the Summer Learning Program is under
way. He also updated the board on an incident at the school. Although the situation has
been satisfactorily resolved, he noted that personnel policies may need to be more explicit.
This matter will be referred to the new School Director for attention before the 2019-2020
school year.

2019-20 Medical, Dental, Vision & Short-Term Disability: Sara E. moved and S. Adair
seconded the approval of the benefit package for the 2019-20 school year, which was
approved unanimously.

2019-20 School Budget: S. Adair moved and R. Stiles seconded a motion to authorize the
Executive Committee to approve the 2019-20 School Budget between regularly scheduled
board meetings. The approved budget will be included on the agenda of the next regularly
scheduled board meeting in June.

Renewal of 133 Hoover Drive Lease: S. Adair moved and R. Stiles seconded the approval
of Resolution #355, which was approved unanimously.

Update on Democracy Prep, Rensselaerville Institute, and ANet: S. Varhus, C.
Wilkins, I.. Lewis, S. Etsler

Update on Strategic Planning Process (June 12-13-14)

Executive Session: S. Adair moved and R. Stiles seconded a motion to move into executive
session; the motion was approved unanimously. S. Etsler moved and S. Adair seconded a
motion that the board end executive session; the motion was apprpoved unanimously.

Old Business: There was no old business.

New Business: S. Adair moved and C. Wilkens seconded the following motion: “That Mr.
Joseph Saia’s employment at Discovery Charter School will end July 31, 2019. Between July
1 and July 31 he will make himself available to provide information to the new school
director. “ The motion was approved unanimously.

Adjournment at 10:00: R. Stiles moved and C. Wilkens seconded a motion to adjourn,
which was approved unanimously.

Next Meeting: Friday June 217, 2019; 8:00-9:30 A.M.
Future Agenda Items: Board Evaluation, Strategic Planning,
Board Membership and 1 eadership, Consider Section 13 of
School Director Evaluation for Bylaws




DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MEETING MINUTES
June 21, 2019, 2019; 8:00-9:30 A.M.
16 Lake View Park, Rochester, NY 14613

Trustees Present: S. Varhus (Chairperson), S. Etsler, C. Wilkens, S. Adair (Treasurer) and R. Stiles
(Secretary). L. Lewis

Trustees Excused: D. Dedee

Also Present: S. Castner (Assistant School Director(, Tamika Jackson (Trustee Elect), Connie
Lucchese, (Director of academic Improvement), Joe Martino (Executive Director, Education
Success Network)

1. Call to Order
a. 'The Chair called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. and it was determined that a lawful
quorum of five was present.

2. Proof of Public Notice of Meeting

a. Public Notice was provided in the Messenger Post and posted at the school
3. Conflict of Interest Reminder
a. The Chairperson read the following statement: “The Chair reminds everyone that, if
a potential conflict of interest exists concerning a subject under discussion by the
Board, you have an obligation to disclose the potential conflict and, if deemed a
conflict, recuse yourself and leave the room during any discussion and vote on the
subject.”

4. Opportunity for Public Comment

5. Consent Agenda: Approval of Minutes from Previous Meeting (5.17.19), Approval of
Minutes from Previous Executive Committee Meeting (6.6.19) and Resolution #356
(Non-Routine checks over $5000 for April 2019) S. Etsler moved and S. Adair seconded a
motion to approve the Consent Agenda, which was approved unanimously.

6. ESN/ESF Associate Member: Joe Martino reported that, in order the clarify the
relationship between DCS and ESN/ESF, there would no longer be an DCS Associate
Member on the ESN/ESF board.

7. Committee Reports

a. Academic Excellence Committee: No report.
b. Audit & Finance Committee
i. Financial Statements, Key Financial Indicators and Check Detail
Report: Committee Chair S. Adair provided a recap of the highlights from
the documents the committee reviewed and distributed to all trustees.
ii. Audit Proposal: S.Adair moved and L. Lewis seconded a motion to accept
the Mengel, Metzger, Barr 2019 Audit Proposal. The motion was approved

unanimously.



10.

11.

12.
13.
14.
15.

16.

c. Governance Committee: R. Stiles reported on a number of activities: New Trustee
Orientation was conducted for Chris Wilkens; Anna Hill has agreed to serve as a
non-trustee member of the Academic Excellence Committee; the Governance
Committee continues to seek nominations for the Board of Trustees.

d. Personnel Committee: S. Etsler moved that continuing DCS staff receive a 2%
salary increase in 2019-2020. After discussion, the board asked Sara Castner to
reconsider the salary issue for 2019-2020 and advance a proposal to the Personnel
Committee for consideration.

e. Executive Committee Report: S. Etsler moved and L. Lewis seconded approval of
Resolution #357, which confirms the Executive Committee action appointing Sara
Castner School Director as of July 1, 2019, at an annual salary of $120,000.
Approval was unanimous.

School Director’s Update: S. Castner presented an update on enrollments, 2018-19 and
2019-20. The Chair noted the importance of having a plan to increase enrollments in SWD
and ELL; this will be a future agenda item for further discussion.

Director of Academic Improvement Report: The C. Lucchese, the Director of Academic
Improvement, presented the most recent summary outcomes data. Discussion focused on
understanding the implications of the data derived from several sources: Benchmark
assessments, Aimsweb, SR, and F&P.

2019-20 School Budget: S. Adair reported that work continues on the 2019-2020 budget,
which will be ready for board approval at its Special Meeting on June 28.

Board Chair Report: The Chair reported that the group (S. Varhus, C. Wilkins, L. Lewis, S.
Etsler) that had vetted possible partners for DCS has concluded that The Rensselaerville
Institute is the best option. After extensive discussion, it was concluded that the Chair
should approach TRI about flexibility in services and the scope of the contracts. The board
will hold a Special Meeting on June 28, at 9:00 a.m. for further discussion of this question.
Update on Encompass Services, 2019-2020: This item was deferred to the June 28
meeting,.

Update on Strategic Planning Process (June 12-13-14): This item was deferred.

O1d Business: There was no old business.

New Business: C. Wilkens moved and S. Adair seconded a motion to direct the Chair of
the Board to send J.Saia a note of appreciation for his service to Discovery Charter School.
Adjournment at 10:00: L Lewis moved and R. Stiles seconded a motion to adjourn, which

was approved unanimously.

Next Meeting: Friday June 28™, 2019; 9:00-10:00 A.M.
Future Agenda Items: Board Evaluation, Strategic Planning,
Board Membership and 1 eadership, Consider Section 13 of
School Director Evaluation for Bylaws




DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MEETING MINUTES
June 28, 2019, 2019; 8:00-9:30 A.M.
16 Lake View Park, Rochester, NY 14613

Trustees Present: S. Varhus (Chairperson), D. Dedee, S. Etsler, C. Wilkens, S. Adair (Treasurer)
and R. Stiles (Secretary, participating via telephone). L. Lewis

Trustees Excused: T. Jackson

Also Present: S. Castner (Assistant School Director), S. Polowitz, Counsel

1.

Call to Order
a. 'The Chair called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. and it was determined that a lawful
quorum of six was present.
Proof of Public Notice of Meeting
a. Public Notice was provided in the Messenger Post and posted at the school
Conlflict of Interest Reminder
a. The Chairperson read the following statement: “The Chair reminds everyone that, if
a potential conflict of interest exists concerning a subject under discussion by the
Board, you have an obligation to disclose the potential conflict and, if deemed a
conflict, recuse yourself and leave the room during any discussion and vote on the
subject.”
Opportunity for Public Comment: There was no public comment.
Possible relationship with The Rensselaerville Institute (TRI): The Chair led the board
in a discussion of the services that TRI would offer and advantages to working with them.
Her discussion points included details about the key activities involved in their Turnaround
Program and the particulars of their contract. She also noted that references confirm the
effectiveness of their support for school improvement. After discussion, S. Varhus moved
and C. Wilkens seconded a motion to direct the executive Committee to approve a contract
with TRI, with the understanding that it will come to the full board for approval at its July
meeting. The motion was approved unanimously.

6. The meeting was adjourned at 9:50:



DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD OF TRUSTEES
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES
June 28, 2019, 2019; 8:00-9:30 A.M.
16 Lake View Park, Rochester, NY 14613

Trustees Present: S. Varhus (Chairperson), D. Dedee (Vice Chair). S. Etsler, C. Wilkens, S.
Adair (Treasurer) , L. Lewis;

R. Stiles (Secretary) —participated via telephone only, and therefore not included for quorum
and voting purposes

Trustees Excused: T. Jackson

Also Present: S. Castner (Assistant School Director—participated via telephone), S. Polowitz
(Attorney)

Call to Order
a. The Chair called the meeting to order at (9:50 a.m. and it was determined that a

lawful quorum of five was present.
2. Proof of Public Notice of Meeting
a. Public Notice was provided at the school
3. Conlflict of Interest Reminder
a. The Chairperson read the following statement: “The Chair reminds everyone
that, if a potential conflict of interest exists concerning a subject under
discussion by the Board, you have an obligation to disclose the potential
conflict and, if deemed a conflict, recuse yourself and leave the room during
any discussion and vote on the subject.”

4. Opportunity for Public Comment

5. Partnership for School Turnaround: S. Varhus moved and C. Wilkens seconded the
following motion: That Discovery Charter School will enter into a contract to
participate in the School Turnaround Program of the Rensselaerville Institute (TRI)
for a three-year period beginning immediately and extending through the 2021-2022
fiscal year, for a total cost of $195,000, subject to Executive Committee and legal
counsel review, revision (if necessary) and approval of the proposed contract to be
received from TRI, with said Executive Committee and legal counsel approval to be
brought to the full board for affirmation and ratification at its regular meeting on July
19. The motion was approved unanimously.

6. ESN services, 2019-2020. S. Etsler briefed the board services that ESN will provide to
DCS in the coming year. These include the Summer Learning Program, which is
serving 100 students, including some of the “CUSP” students, Family Navigation, and
in-school coaching and instructional support by Connie Lucchese and Cara Fitzgerald.



7. 2019-2020 Budget: Discussion of the 2019-2020 budget was deferred until the expenses
for TRI and compensation for continuing staff can be reflected in the current draft of
the budget.

8. Adjournment: At 10:20 a.m., S. Varhus moved and S. Etsler seconded the motion to

adjourn. Approval was unanimous.

Next Meeting: Friday July 19th, 2019; 9:00-10:00 A.M.
Future Agenda Items: Board Evaluation, Strategic Planning,
Board Membership and Leadership, Consider Section 13 of
School Director Evaluation for Bylaws
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Entry 10 Enroliment and Retention of Special

Populations
Last updated: 07/22/2019

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018 19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain
enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who
are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress

toward meeting its enroliment and retention targets in 2019 20.

DISCOVERY CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading
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Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets

Econom
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Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018 19

Students who are eligible applicants for the
free and reduced price lunch program have
been, and remain the focus target for DCS.
They have an admission preference.
Throughout its first charter, the school has
never fallen below a 96% poverty rate. The
high poverty rate has allowed the school to
easily exceed NYSED enrollment and
retention targets for this demographic of
students. Success with this group allows the
school to focus more attention on attracting
and maintaining other traditionally
underserved populations.

DCS has prioritized recruiting ELL students.
Its initial outreach focus had been largely
within the Hispanic community, the largest
non English speaking community locally. In
order to reach target recruitment levels, that
focus has broadened to include the local
refugee community. Various agencies serving
refugees have been cultivated to help recruit
students, and the school is providing
translators and other assistance to help
families navigate the application process. A
new trustee joined the board during the
2014 15 school year bringing expertise and
connections within the refugee population in
Rochester. Our intensified efforts appear to
be working since 14 students (5%) were
identified and received ELL services.

The NYSED enrollment and retention targets
for students with disabilities are being met
by DCS. During the 2018 2019 school year
the school's enroliment of SWD was 12%
against a NYSED target of 3%. The school
recruits through those Head Start preschool
programs that provide special education
services and by offering a wide array of
special education services.

2/3

Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019 20

A common application
(www.goodschoolsroc.org) is used with other
charter schools in the area, allowing families
to easily apply to Discovery. We also continue
to have a sibling preference in our lottery
process.

Information on Discovery Charter School and
its programs is sent to area organizations
that support families (Ilbero American Action
League, Rochester Refugee Resettlement
Network).

The school will continue to recruit through
the Rochester Head Start preschool programs
that provide special education services.



Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets
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Describe Retention Efforts in 2018 19

Outreach will continue in the form of sending
school brochures and applications to county
social service agencies for distribution. DCS
makes itself an attractive option for families
by providing a welcoming culture, sound
academic program, and wrap around
services.

Create an inclusive school climate where
diversity is embraced, provide wrap around
services including after school and summer
programming, offer applications in Spanish
and provide translations in other languages
as needed, continue to expand our efforts,
including translating the school's brochure
into Spanish and actively encouraging work
of mouth recruiting by current ELL families.

Integrated co taught classes are part of the
school's academic program in 6 of the 7
current grade levels.

Additionally, 14 students (5%) are identified
with disabilities that qualified for 504 plans
to meet their academic needs.
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Describe Retention Plans in 2019 20

In collaboration with Education Success
Foundation, Discovery offers a Family
Navigation Program that connects families to
supportive community services, helps with
academic decision making, and participates
in activities intended strengthen the bond
between families.

Discovery will continue to have an English as
a New Language teacher to connect with
families and ensure siblings attend DCS.
Supplemental instruction will continue.
Advertise in local publications and media in
languages other than English and conduct
open houses with bi lingual staff available.

DCS will continue working with school
districts served (Rochester, Greece, West
Irondequoit) to properly assess and diagnhose
students that may have disabilities. A 3rd/4th
grade integrated co taught class is being
implemented this year to serve students in
those grades.
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Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator
Attrition

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing.

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables
Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and
Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing
during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of
staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June
30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the
FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019
using the tables provided.

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE of

Teachers on Teachers Teachers Filling Teachers Added  Classroom

6/30/18 Departed 7/1/18 Vacant Positions in New Positions Teachers on
6/30/19 7/1/18 6/30/19 7/1/18 6/30/19 6/3019

25 2 2 0 25

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table

FTE FTE FTE FTE FTE

Administrative Administrators Administrators Administrators Administrative

Positions on Departed 7/1/18 Filling Vacant Added in New Positions on

6/30/18 6/30/19 Positions 7/1/18  Positions 7/1/18  6/30/19
6/30/19 6/30/19

5 0 0 0 5
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3. Tell your school's story

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some
teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within
the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a
teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school.

The teachers that left DCS this year both took teaching jobs at different school districts. Administrative
count includes School Director, Assistant Director, Math Coach, SEL Coordinator/Coach, and Operations
Manager. Not included in classroom teacher count is four intervention teachers, ELL teacher, or teaching
assistants.

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance
through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA)
prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of
individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been
terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH
system.

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system?

Yes

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you
terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system?

Yes

Thank you
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ﬁ Entry 12 Uncertified Teachers

Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified Teachers

The table below is reflective of the information collected through the online portal for
compliance with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff
qualifications. Enter the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each
column. For example, a school with 20 full time teachers and 5 half time teachers
would have an FTE count of 22.5. If more than one column applies to a particular
teacher, please select one column for the FTE count. Please do not include
paraprofessionals, such as teacher assistants.

FTE count of uncertified teachers on 6/30/18, and each uncertified teacher should be
counted only once.
FTE Count
1. Total FTE count of uncertified teachers (6 30 19) 1

2. FTE count of uncertified teachers with at least three years
of elementary, middle or secondary classroom teaching 0
experience (6 30 19)

3. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or
tenure track college faculty (6 30 19)

4. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of Teach
for America experience (6 30 19)

5. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional
business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military 0
experience (6 30 19)

6. FTE count of uncertified teachers who do not fit into any
of the prior four categories (6 30 19)

FTE Count of All Uncertified 1
Teachers as of 6/30/19

FTE Count of All Certified 36
Teachers as of 6/30/19

Thank you.
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November 27-29: Thanksgiving Recess (No
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Notes & Teacher Contact Information:






